
City Council Agenda        November 14, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  

AGENDA 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman  
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
    Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 
    Councilmember Jill Silva 
    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
    
FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association   

 

 

1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 

Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 
not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by 
completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained 
from the City Clerk. 
 
  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of 
the forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City 
Clerk. Filling out the card is voluntary.  

 



City Council Agenda        November 14, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE. 
    
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 24, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting November 1, 

2016.  
 
3.3: Approve the Warrants Register. 
 
3.4: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report for August 2016. 
 
3.5: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report – August 

2016. 
 
3.6: Approval of the Treasurer’s Reports for September 2016. 
 
3.7: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report – 

September 2016. 
 

3.8: Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission Appointment.     
 
3.9: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, Authorizing Hinderliter, de 
 Llamas & Associates to Examine Sales, Use and Transaction Tax 
 Records and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with 
 Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates for Sales and Use Tax Services. 

 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:    
 

4.1: Update on the Proposed West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency Formation Pursuant to the California Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

6.1: Direct Staff to Release a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Enterprise 
Resource Planning Software and Implementation. 

 



City Council Agenda        November 14, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

6.2: Consideration to Accept the Resignation of Planning Commissioner John 
Luis and Provide Direction to Staff on Filling the Vacant Planning 
Commission Position. 

 

7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE.  
     
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
City Manager:       
 
City Clerk: 
 
Community Development Director: 
  
Director of Finance: 
 
Police Services:  
   
City Attorney: 

 
8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 

 
8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 

  

 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           



City Council Agenda        November 14, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

November 15  Planning Commission Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 6:00 P.M. 

November 19 
 Hughson Community Thanksgiving Dinner @ Senior Citizen Center, 2:00 P.M. – 

4:30 P.M. 

November 20  20th Century Club Arts & Craft Fair @ Hughson High School, 9:00 A.M. – 4:00 P.M. 

November 28  City Council Meeting @ City Hall Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 

November 24-25  Thanksgiving Holiday, City Hall Closed 

December 3  Hughson Christmas Festival, Downtown Hughson Ave, 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

 

DATE:     November 9, 2016 TIME:                    5:00 pm     

NAME:      Susana Diaz  TITLE:                    Deputy City Clerk  

         
 

 
Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  

 
Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official 
language for the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures 
Section 185, which requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is 
hereby given that all proceedings before the City of Hughson City Council shall be in English 
and anyone wishing to address the Council is required to have a translator present who will take 
an oath to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English 
language. 
 

 
General Information: The Hughson City Council meets in the Council Chambers on 

the second and fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise noticed.  

 
Council Agendas: The City Council agenda is now available for public review at 

the City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need 
assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. 
Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  

http://www.hughson.org/


City Council Agenda        November 14, 2016 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

7018 Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 



Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

 

  
Meeting Date: October 24, 2016
Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 
Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 24, 2016 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the October 24, 2016 meeting are prepared for the Council’s 
review.  
   
 

 

  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



City Council Minutes             October 24, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
MINUTES 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2016 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
   Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 

    Councilmember Harold Hill 
   Councilmember Jill Silva  
 
Absent:  Councilmember George Carr 
 
Staff Present: Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  
   Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 
   Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
   Larry Seymour, Chief of Police Services 
   Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director  
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
   Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 
     

FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
INVOCATION:  Reverend Tim Gravatt 

 
 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
No public comment. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes             October 24, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS:    
 

 2.1: Stanislaus County Annual Crop Report Presentation. 
     
Milton O’Haire, Stanislaus County, presented to the City Council the Stanislaus 
County Annual Crop Report. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the 
City Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 24, 2016. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  
 
3.3: Approve the City of Hughson Treasurer’s Report for July 2016. 
 
3.4: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report – July 

2016. 
 
3.5:  Approve the “Ground Rules for Meeting Conduct”. 
 
3.6: Approval of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Year End Adjustments. 
 
3.7: Consideration of the Quarterly City of Hughson Legislative Report. 
 
3.8: Approval of the Professional Services Agreement with J.B. Anderson 

Planning for the Preparation of Environmental Documents Associated with 
the Proposed Province Place Residential Subdivision. 

 
BEEKMAN/HILL 4-0 motion passes to approve the Consent Calendar, except item 
3.5 which was removed from Consent.  
 
 3.5: Approve the “Ground Rules for Meeting Conduct”. 
 

City Attorney Schroeder directed staff to include the position of “Mayor” in 
items denoting the position of “Chairperson” to read “Mayor/Chairperson.” 
 

BEEKMAN/SILVA 4-0 motion passes to approve item 3.5 of the Consent Calendar 
as amended. 
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 



City Council Minutes             October 24, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

6.1:  Direct Staff to Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Preparation 
of a 1,2,3-Tricholorpropane (TCP) Feasibility Study. 

 
Director French presented the staff report on this item. 
 
HILL/BEEKMAN 4-0 motion passes to direct staff to release a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for the preparation of a 1,2,3- Tricholorpropane (TCP) Feasibility 
Study. 
 

6.2: Authorize Staff to Participate in Negotiations Establishing the Proposed 
West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency and Review 
and Discuss Matters Pertaining to the California Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA). 

 
Director French presented the staff report on this item. 
 
BEEMAN/YOUNG 4-0 motion passes to authorize staff to participate in 
negotiations establishing the proposed West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency and review and discuss matters pertaining to the California 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE. 
    
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
City Manager:   City Manager Mendez informed the 

Council that the State Water 
Resource Control Board updated the 
public hearing schedule for the 
Modesto hearing on the Substitute 
Environmental Document to 
December 20, 2016 at Modesto 
Centre Plaza, 9:00 a.m. 

 
 On October 27, 2016 the Hughson 

Youth Leadership classes will be 
joining Mayor Beekman and 
Supervisor Chiesa for a meet and 
greet session to provide the local 
youth an opportunity to engage local 



City Council Minutes             October 24, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

leaders in asking questions and 
gaining a different perspective and 
better understanding of what it 
means to be a representative of a 
City or County. 

 
 October 31, 2016 is the Hughson 

Trunk or Tent and Treat event at 
Lebright Fields. 

 
 November 5, 2016 Italian Nite will be 

taking place in downtown Hughson at 
6:00 p.m. 

 
City Clerk: Deputy City Clerk Diaz reminded 

Council and public of the Presidential 
General Election taking place 
November 8, 2016. 

 
 
Community Development Director: Director French updated the 

Council on the Hatch 
Road/Santa Fe Avenue  
project. BNSF has confirmed 
construction work will begin 
this week. 

 
Director of Finance: Director Esenwein advised the Council and 

public of the Maintenance Worker I and 
Office Assistant positions currently open 
for recruitment.  

 
Director Esenwein will be attending the 
CSJVRMA Quarterly Meeting on October 28, 
2016.   
 
The Financial Management System RFP  
will be brought forth to Council for 
consideration on November 14, 2016. 

 
Police Services: Chief Larry Seymour provided the City 

Council with the latest Crime Statistic 
Report.  Mayor Beekman and Mayor Pro 
Tem Young would like Police Services to 
provide a stronger presence on the social 
media network Nextdoor.  



City Council Minutes             October 24, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

 
 
8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 

 
Councilmember Hill said that he attended the Hughson Homecoming Parade. He 
also attended the 2+2 Fire District Committee Meeting. 
 

8.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

Mayor Beekman noted that he attended the StanCOG meeting. 
  
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:    
 

9.1: “CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Falicitas Martinez v. City of Hughson, Stanislaus Superior 
Court Case No. 2022079.” 
 

9.2: "CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Agency designated representatives: Raul Mendez, City Manager 
Employee Organization: Operating Engineers Local Union 3". 
 

10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:     
 
All of the Councilmembers were present with exception of Councilman Carr who 
was absent and there was no reportable action on items 9.1 or 9.2.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
BEEKMAN/HILL 4-0 motion passes to adjourn the meeting at 9:33 P.M. 
 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor  

 
 
____________________________  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
  



Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

 

 

  
Meeting Date: November 1, 2016

Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 

Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk  

 

Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 1, 2016 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the November 1, 2016 meeting are prepared for the Council’s 
review.  
   
 

 

  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.2 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



City Council Minutes           November 1, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  

MINUTES 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matt Beekman 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Mayor Matt Beekman 
   Mayor Pro Tem Jeramy Young 

    Councilmember George Carr 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 

   Councilmember Jill Silva  
 
Absent:   
 
Staff Present: Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  
   Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 
   Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
   Larry Seymour, Chief of Police Services 
   Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director  
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
   Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 
   Jaime Fountain, City Treasurer 
     

FLAG SALUTE:   
 
INVOCATION:   

 
 

1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 

No Public Comment. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes           November 1, 2016 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS:   NONE. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: NONE. 
 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   NONE. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 

7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE. 
    
8. COMMENTS:  NONE. 
  

 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:    
 

9.1:  "CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Agency designated representatives: Raul Mendez, City Manager 
Employee Organization: Operating Engineers Local Union 3". 

 

10. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:    
 
All of the Councilmembers were present, with the exception of Mayor Pro Tem 
Young who exited closed session at 6:35 P.M. and there was no reportable action.   
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
BEEKMAN/HILL 4-0 motion passes to adjourn the meeting at 7:06 P.M. 

 
 

__________________________ 
MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor  

 
 
____________________________________________  
SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 
  



 

 

  
Meeting Date: November 14, 2016 
Subject: Approval of Warrants Register 
Enclosure: Warrants Register 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance  
 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Warrants Register as presented.     
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The warrants register presented to the City Council is a listing of all expenditures 
paid from October 19, 2016 through November 9, 2016. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There are reductions in various funds for payment of expenses. 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.3 
SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 











 

 
Meeting Date:         November 14, 2016  
Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Reports – August 2016 
Presented By:  Jaime C. Fountain, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report for August 2016. 
 
Summary: 
 
The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report for 
August 2016. As of August 2016, the City of Hughson’s total cash and investment 
balance is $14,615,846.00 and is in compliance with the City’s investment policy. The 
City has sufficient cash flow to meet the City’s expected expenditures for the next six 
months.       
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Treasurer report for August 2016 reflects the most current representation of the 
City’s funds and investments and provides a necessary outlook for both past, present, 
and future investment and spending habits. While investments and funds differ from 
time to time, it is the goal of the City to maintain safety and stability with its funds, while 
additionally promoting prudence and growth. 
 
Enclosed is the City of Hughson Treasurer’s Report for August 2016 along with 
supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the City’s total funds, a breakdown of 
the August 2016 Developer Impact Fees, and an additional line plot graph further 
demonstrating the Developer Impact Fees. This graph depicts the Developer Impact 
Fees’ actual balance for the past five years, and continues with a projection based on 
the average rate of change for each fund over the next few years.   After review and 
evaluation of the report, City staff has researched funds with a significant deficit balance 
and submit the following detailed explanation: 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.4 

SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Public Facilities Development Streets Fund: 
 
The Public Facilities Development Streets Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($190,638.63), reflecting a positive difference of $24,080.00 or an 11.21% increase from 
the previous year. The deficit is a result of the Euclid Bridge Project, which was 
constructed in Fiscal Year 2006/2007, for approximately $1.3 million. The project was 
completed in anticipation of funding from Developer Impact Fees collected from new 
development. Unfortunately, the housing market declined significantly and the new 
development never materialized. As the economy strengthens and new building 
continues, the City can recognize additional developer impact fees and reduce the 
deficit more quickly.   
 
Water Developer Impact Fee Fund: 
 
The Water Developer Impact Fee Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($254,082.44), reflecting a positive difference of $60,848.00 or a 19.32% increase from 
the previous year. After extensive review, City staff discovered that the remaining deficit 
is attributable to settlement arrangements that were made in Fiscal Year 2008/2009 and 
Fiscal Year 2009/2010 for the Water Tank on Fox Road near Charles Street. The 
Project Cost of the Water Tower Project was $2,400,000.  During that period, the City 
paid out $650,000 in settlements. This account will be in a deficit position until additional 
development occurs and developer impact fees are collected to cover those 
unanticipated settlement costs.  
 
Based on a review of Water Development and Street funds, City staff expects 
development in the Feathers Glen (42 units) and Euclid South (69 units) subdivisions, or 
about 110 units to be built to see a positive balance in the Water and Street 
Development funds. The Euclid North (50 units) subdivision is expected to follow shortly 
thereafter.  These units reflect the areas that are most likely to see development within 
the City limits—with construction in Feathers Glen already in progress and under 
construction.        
 
Transportation Capital and CDBG Street Project Fund: 
 
The Transportation Capital Project Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($226,329.82), reflecting a negative difference of $39,772.11 or a 21.32% decrease 
from the previous year. The CDBG Street Project Fund currently reflects a negative 
balance of ($56,968.17) reflecting a negative difference of $5,447.61 or a 10.57% 
decrease from the previous year. The City received $148,271 in April for the Hughson 
Avenue project.  Currently, the City is pending reimbursement for the Tully Road 
project.  As the City continues to produce transportation and street projects, these funds 
will likely continue to show a negative balance.  City staff will continue to monitor and 
report the status of these reimbursements as the funds become available.   
 
 



 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As of August 2016, the total cash and investments balance for the City of Hughson is 
$14,615,846.00. This compares to August 2015’s total cash and investments balance of 
$13,375,719.89 demonstrating a $1,240,126.11 or a 9.27% increase.    



  

                                                             MONEY MARKET GENERAL REDEVELOPMENT** TOTAL

Bank Statement Totals 11,586,032.61$     515,997.17$       -$                        12,102,029.78$       

  Adjustment-Direct Deposit Payroll -$                        -$                         

  Outstanding Deposits + 16,016.66$             -$                        16,016.66$              

  Outstanding Checks/transfers - (143,705.78)$      -$                        (143,705.78)$           

ADJUSTED TOTAL 11,602,049.27$     372,291.39$       -$                        11,974,340.66$       

Investments:             Various  1,070,036.23$         

Multi-Bank WWTP 1,492,361.31$         

Investments:             L.A.I.F. 39,616.90$         39,490.90$             79,107.80$              

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS   14,615,846.00$       

Books - All Funds August 2015   August  2016 Difference % of Varience % of Total  

2 Water/Sewer Deposit 56,799.47 59,637.25 2,837.78 5.00% 0.41%

8 Vehicle Abatement 13,874.55 11,108.55 -2,766.00 -19.94% 0.08%

11 Traffic Congestion Fund 151,783.40 112,130.96 -39,652.44 -26.12% 0.77%

13 Redevelopment - Debt Service -11,362.62 198,278.66 209,641.28 1845.01% 1.36%

17 Federal Officer Grant 6,620.00 6,620.00 0.00 0.00% 0.05%

18 Public Safety Realignment 28,476.76 35,722.01 7,245.25 25.44% 0.24%

19 Asset Forfeiture 6,995.43 6,995.43 0.00 0.00% 0.05%

25 Gas Tax 2106 -8,688.99 -5,566.66 3,122.33 35.93% -0.04%

30 Gas Tax 2107 22,628.71 21,337.61 -1,291.10 -5.71% 0.15%

31 Gas Tax 2105 40,883.26 52,330.38 11,447.12 28.00% 0.36%

35 Gas Tax 2107.5 3,672.14 1,672.14 -2,000.00 -54.46% 0.01%

40 General Fund 1,582,083.81 2,168,240.84 586,157.03 37.05% 14.83%

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 674,085.41 676,372.76 2,287.35 0.34% 4.63%

43 Trench Cut 75,845.00 76,443.60 598.60 0.79% 0.52%

48 Senior Community Center 9,098.06 -1,804.03 -10,902.09 -119.83% -0.01%

49 IT Reserve 77,048.12 99,192.31 22,144.19 28.74% 0.68%

50 U.S.F. Resource Com. Center 2,607.31 6,211.72 3,604.41 138.24% 0.04%

51 Self-Insurance 73,703.49 73,303.49 -400.00 -0.54% 0.50%

53 SLESF (Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund) 4,054.65 27,607.44 23,552.79 580.88% 0.19%

54 Park Project 554,070.71 587,974.68 33,903.97 6.12% 4.02%

60 Sewer O & M 2,464,917.38 2,829,527.53 364,610.15 14.79% 19.36%

61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 2,785,383.35 3,244,361.91 458,978.56 16.48% 22.20%

66 WWTP Expansion 2008 10,117.54 -183,190.26 -193,307.80 -1910.62% -1.25%

69 LTF Non Motoriz 5,208.00 749.00 -4,459.00 -85.62% 0.01%

70 Local Transportation 259,307.03 138,032.34 -121,274.69 -46.77% 0.94%

71 Transportation -186,557.71 -226,329.82 -39,772.11 -21.32% -1.55%

100/200 LLD's and BAD's 165,333.42 203,041.81 37,708.39 22.81% 1.39%

80 Water O & M 250,113.25 310,068.34 59,955.09 23.97% 10.65%  

801 Water TCP123 0.00 19,637.70 19,637.70 n/a 0.13%  

82 Water Fixed Asset Replacement 729,864.57 539,650.17 -190,214.40 -26.06% 3.69%

88 PW CDBG Street Project -51,520.56 -56,968.17 -5,447.61 -10.57% -0.39%

80 Water Reserve-USDA GRANT 21,524.50 21,524.50 0.00 0.00% 0.15%

90 Garbage/Refuse 192,262.51 120,160.67 -72,101.84 -37.50% 4.13%

91 Misc. Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

92 98-EDBG-605 Small Bus. Loans 93,595.60 93,595.60 0.00 0.00% 0.64%

94 96-EDBG-438 Grant 403.43 403.43 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

95 94-STBG-799 Grant 160,270.27 162,695.93 2,425.66 1.51% 1.11%

96 HOME Program Grant (FTHB) 35,041.19 35,041.19 0.00 0.00% 0.24%

97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 195,888.50 199,939.13 4,050.63 2.07% 1.37%

98 HOME Rehabilitation Fund 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.00% 0.27%

Developer Impact Fees   *** 2,840,288.95 2,910,095.86 69,806.91 2.46% 19.91%

TOTAL ALL FUNDS: 13,375,719.89 14,615,846.00 1,240,126.11 9.27% 111.84%

Break Down of Impact Fees   ***

10 Storm Drain 351,032.16 302,321.02 -48,711.14 -13.88% 10.39%

20 Community Enhancement 94,789.16 89,946.51 -4,842.65 -5.11% 3.09%

41 Public Facilities Development 1,441,312.84 1,414,684.43 -26,628.41 -1.85% 48.61%

42 Public Facilities Development-Streets -214,718.63 -190,638.63 24,080.00 11.21% -6.55%

55 Parks DIF 417,901.12 416,461.30 -1,439.82 -0.34% 14.31%

62 Sewer Developer Impact Fees 1,064,902.74 1,131,403.67 66,500.93 6.24% 38.88%

81 Water Developer Impact Fees -314,930.44 -254,082.44 60,848.00 19.32% -8.73%

Break Down of Impact Fees   *** 2,840,288.95 2,910,095.86 69,806.91 2.46% 100.00%

 

                                                             

Jaime C. Fountain, Treasurer                                 Date

                                  

City of Hughson

Treasurer's Report

August   2016

I hereby certify that the investment 
activity for this reporting period 
conforms with the Investment Policy 
adopted by the Hughson City Council, 
and the California Government Code 
Section 53601.  I also certify that there 
are adequate funds available to meet 
the City of Hughson's budgeted and 
actual expenditures for the next six 
months. 



Treasurer's Report - Charts and Graphs

August 2016

40 General Fund 
14.83% 

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 
4.63% 

60 Sewer O & M 
19.36% 

61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 
22.20% 

801 Water 
TCP123 
0.13% 

97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 
1.37% 

Percentage of all Funds for August 2016  

2 Water/Sewer Deposit 8 Vehicle Abatement 11 Traffic Congestion Fund 13 Redevelopment - Debt Service  

17 Federal Officer Grant 18 Public Safety Realignment 19 Asset Forfeiture 25 Gas Tax 2106 

30 Gas Tax 2107 31 Gas Tax 2105 35 Gas Tax 2107.5 40 General Fund 

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 43 Trench Cut 48 Senior Community Center 49 IT Reserve 

50 U.S.F. Resource Com. Center 51 Self-Insurance 53 SLESF (Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund) 54 Park Project 

60 Sewer O & M 61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 66 WWTP Expansion 2008 69 LTF Non Motoriz 

70 Local Transportation 71 Transportation 100/200 LLD's and BAD's 80 Water O & M 

801 Water TCP123 82 Water Fixed Asset Replacement 88 PW CDBG Street Project 80 Water Reserve-USDA GRANT  

90 Garbage/Refuse 91 Misc. Grants 92 98-EDBG-605 Small Bus. Loans 94 96-EDBG-438 Grant 

95 94-STBG-799 Grant 96 HOME Program Grant (FTHB) 97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 98 HOME Rehabilitation Fund 

98 Developer Impact Fees   *** 

Note:  
Data displayed represents largest  percentage 
of City funds.  All other funds represent less 
than 5% of the City's total Cash and 
Investments.   

-400,000.00 

-200,000.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

400,000.00 

600,000.00 

800,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,200,000.00 

1,400,000.00 

1,600,000.00 

August 2016 Breakdown of Developer Impact Fees 

10 Storm Drain 

20 Community Enhancement 

41 Public Facilities Development 

42 Public Facilities Development-Streets 

55 Parks DIF  

62 Sewer Developer Impact Fees 

81 Water Developer Impact Fees 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Storm Drain 85,495.27 169,246.36 236,767.40 350,980.28 302,321.02 377,165.36  470,538.60  587,027.86  

Community Enhancement 114,113.22 59,627.77 87,193.07 94,789.16 89,946.51 90,415.37  90,886.68  91,360.44  

Public Facilities Development 1,676,822.04 1,612,807.64 1,566,955.87 1,441,099.85 1,414,684.43 1,356,238.63  1,300,207.45  1,246,491.12  

Public Facilities Development-Streets -920,858.33 -655,477.33 -524,208.05 -214,718.63 -190,638.63 (133,876.22) (94,014.74) (66,021.97) 

Parks DIF  170,756.69 222,010.46 335,947.76 417,839.37 416,461.30 526,180.99  664,807.12  839,955.29  

Sewer Developer Impact Fees 897,476.41 928,771.81 930,434.13 1,064,745.37 1,131,403.67 1,131,404.73  1,273,415.88  1,350,972.79  

Water Developer Impact Fees -643,260.91 -559,830.40 -528,788.23 -304,322.82 -254,082.44 (204,871.25) (165,191.39) (133,196.80) 

-1,500,000.00 

-1,000,000.00 

-500,000.00 

0.00 

500,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,500,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

5 Year Trend & Estimate for Developer Impact Fees for the Month of August 

Estimation Actual Note:  
Calculated estimations are 
based on each fund's 
average annual  rate of 
change. 



 

 
Meeting Date:         November 14, 2016 
Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio 

Report – August 2016 
Presented By:  Jaime C. Fountain, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment Portfolio 
Report for August 2016. 
 
Summary: 
 
The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is a summary of the City of Hughson’s Investment 
Portfolio for August 2016 and is provided as a supplementary document to the monthly 
Treasurer’s report. As of August 2016, the City of Hughson’s investment total is 
$2,641,505.34 and has a total cash and investment balance of $14,615,846.00. All 
investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance of 
the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson meets its expenditure 
obligations for the next six months as required by California Government Code Section 
53646 (b) (2) and (3) respectively.       
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Investment Portfolio Report is intended to provide supplementary documentation of 
the City of Hughson’s investment practices. According to the City of Hughson’s 
Investment Policy, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council a quarterly 
investment report containing a complete description of the portfolio, the type of 
investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par and dollar values, and the current market 
values of each component of the portfolio.  It is the goal of the City Treasurer however, 
to provide the investment report on a monthly basis as a supplement to the Treasurer’s 
Report. Furthermore, when dealing with investment activities, the City of Hughson 
primary objectives, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and return on investments. 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.5 

SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



According to Michael DeGeeter, the City’s MBS Account Executive, the City of Hughson 
utilizes a 5 year Certificate of Deposit (CD) laddering approach for its investment 
practices.  This approach layers various CDs depending on interest rates and timing, 
which allows for reduced portfolio rates and a continuous stream of maturity dates. Mr. 
DeGeeter states that this CD approach has always spread positively for the City of 
Hughson and has had the highest yield of any spread thus far.    
 
Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report for 
August 2016 along with supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the City’s 
portfolio of investments. After review and evaluation of the report, City staff submits the 
following detailed explanation for investments displaying significant variances: 
 
L.A.I.F. Investments 
 
The reported Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) investments reflect the City’s 
most current balance statement as of August 26, 2016. The two L.A.I.F. accounts share 
a combined balance of $79,107.80, comprising of only 2.99% of the City’s total portfolio 
of investments. L.A.I.F. investments are reported on a quarterly basis.  City Staff will 
continue to report the most recent L.A.I.F. investments and will proceed to update the 
funds on a quarterly basis.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As of August 2016, the total investments balance for the City of Hughson is 
$2,641,505.34 accounting for 18.07% of the City’s total cash and investments. The total 
cash and investment amount is $14,615,846.00. Of the amounts invested, 2.26% is 
invested in Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits, 2.99% is invested in L.A.I.F. 
investments, and 94.75% is invested in CDs. As the year progresses and market values 
and interest rates increase, City Staff will continue to monitor and report the City of 
Hughson’s investment practices.  
 
 
 



                                                             MONEY MARKET GENERAL REDEVELOPMENT** TOTAL

Bank Statement Totals 11,586,032.61$         515,997.17$        -$                          12,102,029.78$   

  Adjustment-Direct Deposit Payroll  -$                     -$                     

  Outstanding Deposits + 16,016.66$                 -$                          16,016.66$          

  Outstanding Checks/transfers - (143,705.78)$       -$                          (143,705.78)$       

ADJUSTED TOTAL 11,602,049.27$         372,291.39$        -$                          11,974,340.66$   

Investments:             Various  1,070,036.23$     

Multi-Bank WWTP 1,492,361.31$     

Investments:             L.A.I.F. 39,616.90$          39,490.90$                79,107.80$          

Total Investments 2,641,505.34$     

Total Cash & Investments   14,615,846.00$   

Breakdown of Investments

Investments: Various - ***850

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance

 Interest 

Accrued 

% of 

Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds. And Bank Deposits: 10,559.11$                10,559.11$              -$              0.99%

Total: 10,559.11$                10,559.11$              -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates

Months til Maturity    

Statement Period 

(08/01/16 - 08/31/16) Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 

Accrued 

 Rate of 

Return 

% of 

Portfolio

GE Cap Finl Inc Retail CTF Dep 09/30/11 - 09/30/16 ≈ 1 mo. 115,000.000$                   100.1020$                 115,117.30$           970.41$       1.990% 10.76%

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/16/11 - 11/16/16 ≈ 3 mo. 53,000.000$                     100.3030$                 53,160.59$              318.51$       2.030% 4.97%

GE Cap Inc Retail CTF Dep Program Book 05/04/12 - 05/04/17 ≈ 9 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.7640$                 100,764.00$           565.75$       1.730% 9.42%

American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 21 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.7530$                 100,753.00$           349.73$       1.140% 9.42%

Belmont SVGS BK Mass 11/13/14 - 11/13/18 ≈ 27 mo. 27,000.000$                     101.7090$                 27,461.43$              126.12$       1.520% 2.57%

Ally Bank Midvalue Utah CTF DEP ACT/365 01/28/16 - 01/28/19 ≈ 29 mo. 76,000.000$                     101.5330$                 77,165.08$              106.19$       1.470% 7.21%

State BK India York NY 09/11/14 - 09/11/19 ≈ 37 mo. 55,000.000$                     102.6370$                 56,450.35$              560.47$       2.100% 5.28%

American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 38 mo. 30,000.000$                     102.9380$                 30,881.40$              242.10$       2.090% 2.89%

Discover BK Greenwood Del CTF 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 38 mo. 100,000.000$                   102.9380$                 102,938.00$           806.99$       2.090% 9.62%

American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 12/04/14 - 12/04/19 ≈ 40 mo. 80,000.000$                     103.3280$                 82,662.40$              424.33$       2.130% 7.73%

Capital One NATL ASSN MCLEAN VA CTF 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 51 mo. 91,000.000$                     103.6970$                 94,364.27$              637.87$       2.080% 8.82%

Captial One BK USA NATL ASSN Glen Allen 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 51 mo. 100,000.000$                   103.6970$                 103,697.00$           700.96$       2.080% 9.69%

Dicover BK Greenwood Del CTF 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 51 mo. 110,000.000$                   103.6930$                 114,062.30$           788.99$       2.130% 10.66%

Total CDs 1,059,477.12$        6,598.42$    99.01%

Total Investments: Various Holdings 1,070,036.23$        6,598.42$    100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 40.51%

Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance

 Interest 

Accrued 

% of 

Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits: 17,939.42$                18,895.66$              -$              1.27%

Total: 17,939.42$                18,895.66$              -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates

Months til Maturity              
Statement Period 

(08/01/16 - 08/31/16) Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 

Accrued 

 Rate of 

Return 

% of 

Portfolio

GE CAP Finl Inc Retail CTF DEP 09/30/11 - 09/30/16 ≈ 1 mo. 31,000.000$                     100.1020$                 31,031.62$              261.59$       1.990% 2.08%

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/23/11 - 11/23/16 ≈ 3 mo. 107,000.000$                   100.3320$                 107,355.24$           600.96$       2.030% 7.19%

Discover Bk Greenwood DEL 05/08/13 - 05/08/18 ≈ 21 mo. 40,000.000$                     100.7520$                 40,300.80$              144.93$       1.140% 2.70%

American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 21 mo. 57,000.000$                     100.7530$                 57,429.21$              199.34$       1.140% 3.85%

Firstbank P R Santuce 05/10/13 - 05/10/18 ≈ 21 mo. 250,000.000$                   100.7550$                 251,887.50$           151.03$       1.040% 16.88%

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 12/18/13 - 12/18/18 ≈ 28 mo. 25,000.000$                     102.2040$                 25,551.00$              103.90$       2.000% 1.71%

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 01/10/14 - 01/10/19 ≈ 29 mo. 95,000.000$                     102.2160$                 97,105.20$              257.15$       1.850% 6.51%

First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 03/08/13 - 03/08/19 ≈ 31 mo. 46,000.000$                     100.2430$                 46,111.78$              33.33$         1.150% 3.09%

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 03/21/14 - 03/21/19 ≈ 31 mo. 80,000.000$                     102.3650$                 81,892.00$              692.38$       1.900% 5.49%

JP Morgan Chase BK NA Columbus Ohio CTF 04/30/15 - 04/30/19 ≈ 32 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.1480$                 100,148.00$           4.11$            1.490% 6.71%

Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 05/28/14 - 05/28/19 ≈ 33 mo. 40,000.000$                     102.2340$                 40,893.60$              -$              0.000% 2.74%

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF UT CTF DEP 06/04/14 - 06/04/19 ≈ 34 mo. 80,000.000$                     102.3550$                 81,884.00$              385.75$       1.950% 5.49%

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/08/14 - 10/08/19 ≈ 38 mo. 50,000.000$                     102.9620$                 51,481.00$              427.05$       2.090% 3.45%

State BK India Chicago ILL 10/14/14 - 10/15/19 ≈ 38 mo. 54,000.000$                     102.9710$                 55,604.34$              431.85$       2.040% 3.73%

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/22/14 - 10/22/19 ≈ 38 mo. 83,000.000$                     102.9430$                 85,442.69$              640.46$       2.090% 5.73%

Wells Fargo BK N A San Francisco Calif 04/30/15 - 04/30/20 ≈ 44 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.5470$                 100,547.00$           109.59$       1.240% 6.74%

Captial One BK USA NATL ASSN Glen Allen 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 50 mo. 211,000.000$                   103.6970$                 218,800.67$           1,479.02$    2.080% 14.66%

Total CDs 1,473,465.65$        5,922.44$    98.73%

Total Multi-Bank WWTP Holdings 1,492,361.31$        5,922.44$    100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 56.50%

L.A.I.F. Investments

Account #

Quarter End Principal 

Balance as of           

08/26/2016

 Quarterly Interest 

Earned as of 

08/26/2016 Interest Rate Total

****375 39,563.08$                        53.82$                               0.37% 39,616.90$              50.08%

****005 39,437.25$                        53.65$                               0.37% 39,490.90$              49.92%

Total L.A.I.F Investments Holdings 79,107.80$              100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 2.99%

                                                                 

Jaime C. Fountain, Treasurer                                     Date                               

City of Hughson

Portfolio of Investments

August 2016

% of Investment 

All investment actions executed since the last report 
have been made in full compliance with the 
Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson will meet its 
expenditure obligations for the next six months as 
required by California Governmnet Code Section 
53646 (b)(2) and (3) respectively.   



Charts and Graphs 

Cash, Money, Funds. And Bank Deposits: 
0.99% 

GE Cap Finl Inc Retail CTF 
Dep 

10.76% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP 
DTD 

4.97% 

GE Cap Inc Retail 
CTF Dep Program 

Book 
9.42% 

American 
Express 

Centurion 
BK CTF DEP 

9.42% 

Belmont 
SVGS BK 

Mass 
2.57% 

Ally Bank Midvalue 
Utah CTF DEP 

ACT/365 
7.21% 

State BK India York NY 
5.28% 

American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 
2.89% 

Discover BK 
Greenwood Del CTF 

9.62% 

American Express 
Centurion BK CTF DEP 

7.73% 

Capital One NATL ASSN 
MCLEAN VA CTF 

8.82% 

Captial One 
BK USA 

NATL ASSN 
Glen Allen 

9.69% 

Dicover BK 
Greenwood Del CTF 

10.66% 

Breakdown of Investments: Various - ***850 
August 2016  

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits: 
1.27% 

GE CAP Finl Inc Retail CTF DEP 
2.08% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA 
New York CTF DEP DTD 

7.19% Discover Bk Greenwood DEL 
2.70% 

American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 
3.85% 

Firstbank P R Santuce 
16.88% 

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 
1.71% 

GE CAP Retail BK 
Draper Utah Instl  

6.51% 

First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 
3.09% 

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl  
5.49% 

JP Morgan Chase BK NA Columbus Ohio CTF 
6.71% 

Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 
2.74% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA 
New York CTF UT CTF DEP 

5.49% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
3.45% 

State BK India Chicago ILL 
3.73% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
5.73% 

Wells Fargo BK N A San 
Francisco Calif 

6.74% 

Captial One BK USA NATL 
ASSN Glen Allen  

14.66% 

Breakdown of Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934 
August 2016  

78.20% 

8.80% 

12.32% 

0.28% 0.28% 

Total Portfolio of Investment  
(Including Money Market Cash) 

August 2016 

Money Market:          
$11,586,032.61  

Investments: Various  
$1,070,036.23  

Multi-Bank WWTP  $1,492,361.31  

L.A.I.F. ****375             $39,616.90  

L.A.I.F. ****005           $39,490.90  

Total: $14,227,537.95 

40.37% 

56.53% 

1.50% 

1.50% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Account 
August 2016 

Investments: Various  
$1,070,036.23  

Multi-Bank WWTP  $1,492,361.31  

L.A.I.F. ****375             
$39,616.90  

L.A.I.F. ****005           $39,490.90  

Total: $2,641,505.34 

****375 
 $39,616.90  

50.08% 

****005 
 $39,490.90  

49.92% 

Breakdown of L.A.I.F. Investments 
August 2016 

Total: $79,107.80 
 

Cash, Money, Funds, 
and Bank Deposits 

 $29,454.77 
2.26% 

Cetificate 
Deposit 

 $2,532,942.77  
94.75% 

L.A.I.F. 
 $79,107.80  

2.99% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Type 
August 2016 

Total: $2,641,505.34 



 

 
Meeting Date:         November 14, 2016  
Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Reports – September 2016 
Presented By:  Jaime C. Fountain, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report for September 2016. 
 
Summary: 
 
The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report for 
September 2016. As of September 2016, the City of Hughson’s total cash and 
investment balance is $14,541,852.15 and is in compliance with the City’s investment 
policy. The City has sufficient cash flow to meet the City’s expected expenditures for the 
next six months.       
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Treasurer report for September 2016 reflects the most current representation of the 
City’s funds and investments and provides a necessary outlook for both past, present, 
and future investment and spending habits. While investments and funds differ from 
time to time, it is the goal of the City to maintain safety and stability with its funds, while 
additionally promoting prudence and growth. 
 
Enclosed is the City of Hughson Treasurer’s Report for September 2016 along with 
supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the City’s total funds, a breakdown of 
the September 2016 Developer Impact Fees, and an additional line plot graph further 
demonstrating the Developer Impact Fees. This graph depicts the Developer Impact 
Fees’ actual balance for the past five years, and continues with a projection based on 
the average rate of change for each fund over the next few years.   After review and 
evaluation of the report, City staff has researched funds with a significant deficit balance 
and submit the following detailed explanation: 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.6 

SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Public Facilities Development Streets Fund: 
 
The Public Facilities Development Streets Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($184,618.63), reflecting a positive difference of $30,100.00 or a 14.02% increase from 
the previous year. The deficit is a result of the Euclid Bridge Project, which was 
constructed in Fiscal Year 2006/2007, for approximately $1.3 million. The project was 
completed in anticipation of funding from Developer Impact Fees collected from new 
development. Unfortunately, the housing market declined significantly and the new 
development never materialized. As the economy strengthens and new building 
continues, the City can recognize additional developer impact fees and reduce the 
deficit more quickly.   
 
Water Developer Impact Fee Fund: 
 
The Water Developer Impact Fee Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($238,870.44), reflecting a positive difference of $76,060.00 or a 24.15% increase from 
the previous year. After extensive review, City staff discovered that the remaining deficit 
is attributable to settlement arrangements that were made in Fiscal Year 2008/2009 and 
Fiscal Year 2009/2010 for the Water Tank on Fox Road near Charles Street. The 
Project Cost of the Water Tower Project was $2,400,000.  During that period, the City 
paid out $650,000 in settlements. This account will be in a deficit position until additional 
development occurs and developer impact fees are collected to cover those 
unanticipated settlement costs.  
 
Based on a review of Water Development and Street funds, City staff expects 
development in the Feathers Glen (42 units) and Euclid South (69 units) subdivisions, or 
about 110 units to be built to see a positive balance in the Water and Street 
Development funds. The Euclid North (50 units) subdivision is expected to follow shortly 
thereafter.  These units reflect the areas that are most likely to see development within 
the City limits—with construction in Feathers Glen already in progress and under 
construction.        
 
Transportation Capital and CDBG Street Project Fund: 
 
The Transportation Capital Project Fund currently reflects a negative balance of 
($226,329.82), reflecting a negative difference of $20,094.36 or a 9.74% decrease from 
the previous year. The CDBG Street Project Fund currently reflects a negative balance 
of ($58,460.40) reflecting a positive difference of $132,241.45 or a 69.34% increase 
from the previous year. The City received $148,271 in April for the Hughson Avenue 
project.  Currently, the City is pending reimbursement for the Tully Road project.  As the 
City continues to produce transportation and street projects, these funds will likely 
continue to show a negative balance.  City staff will continue to monitor and report the 
status of these reimbursements as the funds become available.   
 
 



 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As of September 2016, the total cash and investments balance for the City of Hughson 
is $14,541,852.15. This compares to September’s 2015’s total cash and investments 
balance of $15,610,884.01 demonstrating a negative difference of $1,069,031.86 or a 
6.85% decrease.   The decrease in cash balance is due to the refinancing of the RDA 
Bond.  Cash of $2,746,593.75 was received in September 2015 and subsequently paid 
out in October 2015. 



  

                                                             
MONEY MARKET GENERAL

REDEVELOPMENT*

*
TOTAL

Bank Statement Totals 11,338,505.77$     737,413.54$           -$                     12,075,919.31$       

  Adjustment-Direct Deposit Payroll -$                       -$                        

  Outstanding Deposits + 18,120.69$             -$                     18,120.69$              

  Outstanding Checks/transfers - (195,127.89)$          -$                     (195,127.89)$           

ADJUSTED TOTAL 11,356,626.46$     542,285.65$           -$                     11,898,912.11$       

Investments:             Various  1,070,392.77$         

Multi-Bank WWTP 1,493,439.47$         

Investments:             L.A.I.F. 39,616.90$             39,490.90$          79,107.80$              

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS   14,541,852.15$       

Books - All Funds September 2015   September  2016 Difference % of Varience % of Total  

2 Water/Sewer Deposit 56,880.91 61,105.38 4,224.47 7.43% 0.42%

8 Vehicle Abatement 13,960.19 10,648.40 -3,311.79 -23.72% 0.07%

11 Traffic Congestion Fund 123,032.79 113,037.30 -9,995.49 -8.12% 0.78%

13 Redevelopment - Debt Service 2,714,223.63 55,879.61 -2,658,344.02 -97.94% 0.38%

17 Federal Officer Grant 6,620.00 6,620.00 0.00 0.00% 0.05%

18 Public Safety Realignment 35,722.01 35,722.01 0.00 0.00% 0.25%

19 Asset Forfeiture 6,995.43 6,995.43 0.00 0.00% 0.05%

25 Gas Tax 2106 -13,079.75 -6,437.15 6,642.60 50.79% -0.04%

30 Gas Tax 2107 13,891.38 17,125.10 3,233.72 23.28% 0.12%

31 Gas Tax 2105 36,145.82 8,050.49 -28,095.33 -77.73% 0.06%

35 Gas Tax 2107.5 2,672.14 1,172.14 -1,500.00 -56.13% 0.01%

40 General Fund 1,412,046.93 2,063,137.17 651,090.24 46.11% 14.19%

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 674,085.41 676,372.76 2,287.35 0.34% 4.65%

43 Trench Cut 76,326.80 76,443.60 116.80 0.15% 0.53%

48 Senior Community Center 8,387.03 -99.43 -8,486.46 -101.19% 0.00%

49 IT Reserve 82,548.12 105,212.47 22,664.35 27.46% 0.72%

50 U.S.F. Resource Com. Center 1,302.57 5,684.74 4,382.17 336.42% 0.04%

51 Self-Insurance 73,303.49 73,303.49 0.00 0.00% 0.50%

53 SLESF (Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund) 3,753.36 19,810.32 16,056.96 427.80% 0.14%

54 Park Project 554,168.03 596,005.39 41,837.36 7.55% 4.10%

60 Sewer O & M 2,318,555.85 2,450,120.19 131,564.34 5.67% 16.85%

61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 2,897,081.55 3,355,946.53 458,864.98 15.84% 23.08%

66 WWTP Expansion 2008 208,908.46 251,855.65 42,947.19 20.56% 1.73%

69 LTF Non Motoriz 5,208.00 749.00 -4,459.00 -85.62% 0.01%

70 Local Transportation 247,658.62 138,047.79 -109,610.83 -44.26% 0.95%

71 Transportation -206,235.46 -226,329.82 -20,094.36 -9.74% -1.56%

100/200 LLD's and BAD's 152,924.21 151,943.18 -981.03 -0.64% 1.04%

80 Water O & M 222,338.48 303,732.40 81,393.92 36.61% 10.11%  

801 Water TCP123 0.00 19,637.70 19,637.70 n/a 0.14%  

82 Water Fixed Asset Replacement 776,363.76 586,086.27 -190,277.49 -24.51% 4.03%

88 PW CDBG Street Project -190,701.85 -58,460.40 132,241.45 69.34% -0.40%

80 Water Reserve-USDA GRANT 21,524.50 21,524.50 0.00 0.00% 0.15%

90 Garbage/Refuse 84,750.29 85,344.00 593.71 0.70% 2.84%

91 Misc. Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

92 98-EDBG-605 Small Bus. Loans 93,595.60 93,595.60 0.00 0.00% 0.64%

94 96-EDBG-438 Grant 403.43 403.43 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

95 94-STBG-799 Grant 160,560.50 163,009.24 2,448.74 1.53% 1.12%

96 HOME Program Grant (FTHB) 35,041.19 35,041.19 0.00 0.00% 0.24%

97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 196,109.35 200,060.94 3,951.59 2.01% 1.38%

98 HOME Rehabilitation Fund 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.00% 0.28%

Developer Impact Fees   *** 2,663,811.24 3,003,755.54 339,944.30 12.76% 20.66%

TOTAL ALL FUNDS: 15,610,884.01 14,541,852.15 -1,069,031.86 -6.85% 110.28%

Break Down of Impact Fees   ***

10 Storm Drain 261,601.69 315,611.35 54,009.66 20.65% 10.51%

20 Community Enhancement 100,203.06 93,978.51 -6,224.55 -6.21% 3.13%

41 Public Facilities Development 1,457,894.25 1,414,862.76 -43,031.49 -2.95% 47.10%

42 Public Facilities Development-Streets -214,718.63 -184,618.63 30,100.00 14.02% -6.15%

55 Parks DIF 417,974.52 426,914.39 8,939.87 2.14% 14.21%

62 Sewer Developer Impact Fees 955,786.79 1,175,877.60 220,090.81 23.03% 39.15%

81 Water Developer Impact Fees -314,930.44 -238,870.44 76,060.00 24.15% -7.95%

Break Down of Impact Fees   *** 2,663,811.24 3,003,755.54 339,944.30 12.76% 100.00%

 

                                                               

Jaime C. Fountain, Treasurer                                Date

City of Hughson

Treasurer's Report

September  2016

I hereby certify that the investment 
activity for this reporting period 
conforms with the Investment Policy 
adopted by the Hughson City Council, 
and the California Government Code 
Section 53601.  I also certify that there 
are adequate funds available to meet 
the City of Hughson's budgeted and 
actual expenditures for the next six 
months. 



Treasurer's Report - Charts and Graphs

September 2016

40 General Fund 
14.19% 

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 
4.65% 

60 Sewer O & M 
16.85% 

61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 
23.08% 

801 Water TCP123 
0.14% 

97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 
1.38% 

Percentage of all Funds for September 2016  

2 Water/Sewer Deposit 8 Vehicle Abatement 11 Traffic Congestion Fund 13 Redevelopment - Debt Service  

17 Federal Officer Grant 18 Public Safety Realignment 19 Asset Forfeiture 25 Gas Tax 2106 

30 Gas Tax 2107 31 Gas Tax 2105 35 Gas Tax 2107.5 40 General Fund 

401 General Fund Contingency Reserve 43 Trench Cut 48 Senior Community Center 49 IT Reserve 

50 U.S.F. Resource Com. Center 51 Self-Insurance 53 SLESF (Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund) 54 Park Project 

60 Sewer O & M 61 Sewer Fixed Asset Replacement 66 WWTP Expansion 2008 69 LTF Non Motoriz 

70 Local Transportation 71 Transportation 100/200 LLD's and BAD's 80 Water O & M 

801 Water TCP123 82 Water Fixed Asset Replacement 88 PW CDBG Street Project 80 Water Reserve-USDA GRANT  

90 Garbage/Refuse 91 Misc. Grants 92 98-EDBG-605 Small Bus. Loans 94 96-EDBG-438 Grant 

95 94-STBG-799 Grant 96 HOME Program Grant (FTHB) 97 96-STBG-1013 Grant 98 HOME Rehabilitation Fund 

98 Developer Impact Fees   *** 

Note:  
Data displayed represents largest  percentage 
of City funds.  All other funds represent less 
than 5% of the City's total Cash and 
Investments.   

-400,000.00 

-200,000.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

400,000.00 

600,000.00 

800,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,200,000.00 

1,400,000.00 

1,600,000.00 

September 2016 Breakdown of Developer Impact Fees 

10 Storm Drain 

20 Community Enhancement 

41 Public Facilities Development 

42 Public Facilities Development-Streets 

55 Parks DIF  

62 Sewer Developer Impact Fees 

81 Water Developer Impact Fees 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Storm Drain 85,495.27 169,246.36 236,767.40 350,980.28 315,611.35 397,729.60  501,214.03  631,623.85  

Community Enhancement 114,113.22 59,627.77 87,193.07 94,789.16 93,978.51 95,467.77  96,980.63  98,517.46  

Public Facilities Development 1,676,822.04 1,612,807.64 1,566,955.87 1,441,099.85 1,414,862.76 1,356,453.37  1,300,455.27  1,246,768.93  

Public Facilities Development-Streets -920,858.33 -655,477.33 -524,208.05 -214,718.63 -184,618.63 (128,354.64) (89,237.55) (62,041.70) 

Parks DIF  170,756.69 222,010.46 335,947.76 417,839.37 426,914.39 542,058.06  688,257.28  873,888.09  

Sewer Developer Impact Fees 897,476.41 928,771.81 930,434.13 1,064,745.37 1,175,877.60 1,175,878.67  1,349,653.97  1,445,947.74  

Water Developer Impact Fees -643,260.91 -559,830.40 -528,788.23 -304,322.82 -238,870.44 (189,620.48) (150,524.80) (119,489.81) 

-1,500,000.00 

-1,000,000.00 

-500,000.00 

0.00 

500,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

1,500,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

5 Year Trend & Estimate for Developer Impact Fees for the Month of September 

Estimation Actual Note:  
Calculated estimations are 
based on each fund's 
average annual  rate of 
change. 



 

 
Meeting Date:         November 14, 2016 
Subject: Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio 

Report – September 2016 
Presented By:  Jaime C. Fountain, City Treasurer  
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve the City of Hughson Treasurer's Report: Investment Portfolio 
Report for September 2016. 
 
Summary: 
 
The City Treasurer is required to review the City’s investment practices and approve the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. Enclosed is a summary of the City of Hughson’s Investment 
Portfolio for September 2016 and is provided as a supplementary document to the 
monthly Treasurer’s report. As of September 2016, the City of Hughson’s investment 
total is $2,642,940.04 and has a total cash and investment balance of $14,541,852.12. 
All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance 
of the City of Hughson’s Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson meets its expenditure 
obligations for the next six months as required by California Government Code Section 
53646 (b) (2) and (3) respectively.       
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Investment Portfolio Report is intended to provide supplementary documentation of 
the City of Hughson’s investment practices. According to the City of Hughson’s 
Investment Policy, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council a quarterly 
investment report containing a complete description of the portfolio, the type of 
investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par and dollar values, and the current market 
values of each component of the portfolio.  It is the goal of the City Treasurer however, 
to provide the investment report on a monthly basis as a supplement to the Treasurer’s 
Report. Furthermore, when dealing with investment activities, the City of Hughson 
primary objectives, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and return on investments. 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.7 

SECTION 3: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 



According to Michael DeGeeter, the City’s MBS Account Executive, the City of Hughson 
utilizes a 5 year Certificate of Deposit (CD) laddering approach for its investment 
practices.  This approach layers various CDs depending on interest rates and timing, 
which allows for reduced portfolio rates and a continuous stream of maturity dates. Mr. 
DeGeeter states that this CD approach has always spread positively for the City of 
Hughson and has had the highest yield of any spread thus far.    
 
Enclosed is the City of Hughson’s Treasurer’s Report: Investment Portfolio Report for 
September 2016 along with supplementary graphs depicting the percentage of the 
City’s portfolio of investments. After review and evaluation of the report, City staff 
submits the following detailed explanation for investments displaying significant 
variances: 
 
L.A.I.F. Investments 
 
The reported Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) investments reflect the City’s 
most current balance statement as of September 26, 2016. The two L.A.I.F. accounts 
share a combined balance of $79,107.80, comprising of only 2.99% of the City’s total 
portfolio of investments. L.A.I.F. investments are reported on a quarterly basis.  City 
Staff will continue to report the most recent L.A.I.F. investments and will proceed to 
update the funds on a quarterly basis.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
As of September 2016, the total investments balance for the City of Hughson is 
$2,642,940.04 accounting for 18.17% of the City’s total cash and investments. The total 
cash and investment amount is $14,541,852.15. Of the amounts invested, 6.76% is 
invested in Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits, 2.99% is invested in L.A.I.F. 
investments, and 90.25% is invested in CDs. As the year progresses and market values 
and interest rates increase, City Staff will continue to monitor and report the City of 
Hughson’s investment practices.  
 
 
 



                                                             MONEY MARKET GENERAL REDEVELOPMENT** TOTAL

Bank Statement Totals 11,338,505.77$         737,413.54$        -$                          12,075,919.31$   

  Adjustment-Direct Deposit Payroll  -$                     -$                     

  Outstanding Deposits + 18,120.69$                 -$                          18,120.69$          

  Outstanding Checks/transfers - (195,127.89)$       -$                          (195,127.89)$       

ADJUSTED TOTAL 11,356,626.46$         542,285.65$        -$                          11,898,912.11$   

Investments:             Various  1,070,392.77$     

Multi-Bank WWTP 1,493,439.47$     

Investments:             L.A.I.F. 39,616.90$          39,490.90$                79,107.80$          

Total Investments 2,642,940.04$     

Total Cash & Investments   14,541,852.15$   

Breakdown of Investments

Investments: Various - ***850

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance

 Interest 

Accrued 

% of 

Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds. And Bank Deposits: 10,559.11$                127,314.67$           -$              11.89%

Total: 10,559.11$                127,314.67$           -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates

Months til Maturity    

Statement Period 

(09/01/16 - 09/30/16) Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 

Accrued 

 Rate of 

Return 

% of 

Portfolio

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/16/11 - 11/16/16 ≈ 2 mo. 53,000.000$                     100.1820$                 53,096.46$              407.81$       2.030% 4.96%

GE Cap Inc Retail CTF Dep Program Book 05/04/12 - 05/04/17 ≈ 8 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.6840$                 100,684.00$           709.59$       1.730% 9.41%

American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 20 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.7430$                 100,743.00$           444.25$       1.140% 9.41%

Belmont SVGS BK Mass 11/13/14 - 11/13/18 ≈ 26 mo. 27,000.000$                     101.6820$                 27,454.14$              160.52$       1.520% 2.56%

Ally Bank Midvalue Utah CTF DEP ACT/365 01/28/16 - 01/28/19 ≈ 28 mo. 76,000.000$                     101.5200$                 77,155.20$              199.89$       1.470% 7.21%

State BK India York NY 09/11/14 - 09/11/19 ≈ 36 mo. 55,000.000$                     102.5970$                 56,428.35$              61.55$         2.100% 5.27%

American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 37 mo. 30,000.000$                     102.9140$                 30,874.20$              295.11$       2.090% 2.88%

Discover BK Greenwood Del CTF 10/16/14 - 10/16/19 ≈ 37 mo. 100,000.000$                   102.9140$                 102,914.00$           983.70$       2.090% 9.61%

American Express Centurion BK CTF DEP 12/04/14 - 12/04/19 ≈ 39 mo. 80,000.000$                     102.0140$                 81,611.20$              568.99$       2.130% 7.62%

Capital One NATL ASSN MCLEAN VA CTF 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 50 mo. 91,000.000$                     103.6950$                 94,362.45$              798.68$       2.080% 8.82%

Captial One BK USA NATL ASSN Glen Allen 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 50 mo. 100,000.000$                   103.6950$                 103,695.00$           877.67$       2.080% 9.69%

Dicover BK Greenwood Del CTF 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 50 mo. 110,000.000$                   103.6910$                 114,060.10$           987.89$       2.130% 10.66%

Total CDs 943,078.10$           6,495.65$    88.11%

Total Investments: Various Holdings 1,070,392.77$        6,495.65$    100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 40.50%

Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934

Description Maturity Dates Quantity Opening Balance Closing Balance

 Interest 

Accrued 

% of 

Portfolio

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits: 18,895.66$                51,389.90$              -$              3.44%

Total: 18,895.66$                51,389.90$              -$              

Fixed Income (Certificate of Deposits) Maturity Dates

Months til Maturity              
Statement Period 

(09/01/16 - 09/30/16) Quantity Market Price Market Value

 Interest 

Accrued 

 Rate of 

Return 

% of 

Portfolio

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP DTD 11/23/11 - 11/23/16 ≈ 2 mo. 107,000.000$                   100.2120$                 107,226.84$           781.25$       2.030% 7.18%

Discover Bk Greenwood DEL 05/08/13 - 05/08/18 ≈ 20 mo. 40,000.000$                     100.7430$                 40,297.20$              182.74$       1.140% 2.70%

American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 05/09/13 - 05/09/18 ≈ 20 mo. 57,000.000$                     100.7430$                 57,423.51$              253.22$       1.140% 3.85%

Firstbank P R Santuce 05/10/13 - 05/10/18 ≈ 20 mo. 250,000.000$                   100.7450$                 251,862.50$           143.84$       1.040% 16.86%

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 12/18/13 - 12/18/18 ≈ 27 mo. 25,000.000$                     102.1650$                 25,541.25$              146.03$       2.000% 1.71%

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 01/10/14 - 01/10/19 ≈ 28 mo. 95,000.000$                     102.1790$                 97,070.05$              405.51$       1.850% 6.50%

First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 03/08/13 - 03/08/19 ≈ 30 mo. 46,000.000$                     100.2710$                 46,124.66$              31.88$         1.150% 3.09%

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl 03/21/14 - 03/21/19 ≈ 30 mo. 80,000.000$                     102.3150$                 81,852.00$              34.19$         1.900% 5.48%

JP Morgan Chase BK NA Columbus Ohio CTF 04/30/15 - 04/30/19 ≈ 31 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.0700$                 100,070.00$           -$              1.490% 6.70%

Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 05/28/14 - 05/28/19 ≈ 32 mo. 40,000.000$                     102.2800$                 40,912.00$              -$              0.000% 2.74%

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF UT CTF DEP 06/04/14 - 06/04/19 ≈ 33 mo. 80,000.000$                     102.3100$                 81,848.00$              517.26$       1.950% 5.48%

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/08/14 - 10/08/19 ≈ 37 mo. 50,000.000$                     102.9370$                 51,468.50$              515.41$       2.090% 3.45%

State BK India Chicago ILL 10/14/14 - 10/15/19 ≈ 37 mo. 54,000.000$                     102.9460$                 55,590.84$              525.06$       2.040% 3.72%

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 10/22/14 - 10/22/19 ≈ 37 mo. 83,000.000$                     102.9190$                 85,422.77$              787.14$       2.090% 5.72%

Wells Fargo BK N A San Francisco Calif 04/30/15 - 04/30/20 ≈ 43 mo. 100,000.000$                   100.5430$                 100,543.00$           212.33$       1.240% 6.73%

Captial One BK USA NATL ASSN Glen Allen 11/04/15 - 11/04/20 ≈ 49 mo. 211,000.000$                   103.6950$                 218,796.45$           1,851.89$    2.080% 14.65%

Total CDs 1,442,049.57$        6,387.75$    96.56%

Total Multi-Bank WWTP Holdings 1,493,439.47$        6,387.75$    100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 56.51%

L.A.I.F. Investments

Account #

Quarter End Principal 

Balance as of             

Sept 2016

 Quarterly Interest 

Earned as of              

Sept 2016 Interest Rate Total

****375 39,563.08$                        53.82$                               0.37% 39,616.90$              50.08%

****005 39,437.25$                        53.65$                               0.37% 39,490.90$              49.92%

Total L.A.I.F Investments Holdings 79,107.80$              100.00%

Total Portfolio Investment 2.99%

                                                                 

Jaime C. Fountain, Treasurer                                     Date                               

City of Hughson

Portfolio of Investments

September 2016

% of Investment 

All investment actions executed since the last report 
have been made in full compliance with the 
Investment Policy.  The City of Hughson will meet its 
expenditure obligations for the next six months as 
required by California Governmnet Code Section 
53646 (b)(2) and (3) respectively.   



Money Market:        

Investments: Various

Multi-Bank WWTP

L.A.I.F. ****375           

L.A.I.F. ****005         

Total Invest:

Total ALL

Charts and Graphs 

Cash, Money, Funds. And 
Bank Deposits: 

11.89% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA New York CTF DEP 
DTD 

4.96% 

GE Cap Inc Retail 
CTF Dep Program 

Book 
9.41% 

American 
Express 

Centurion 
BK CTF DEP 

9.41% 

Belmont 
SVGS BK 

Mass 
2.56% 

Ally Bank 
Midvalue 
Utah CTF 

DEP 
ACT/365 

7.21% 
State BK India York NY 

5.27% 

American Express Fed SVGS BK CTF DEP 
2.88% 

Discover BK 
Greenwood Del CTF 

9.61% 

American Express 
Centurion BK CTF DEP 

7.62% 

Capital One NATL ASSN 
MCLEAN VA CTF 

8.82% 

Captial One 
BK USA 

NATL ASSN 
Glen Allen 

9.69% 

Dicover BK 
Greenwood Del CTF 

10.66% 

Breakdown of Investments: Various - ***850 
September 2016  

Cash, Money, Funds, and Bank Deposits: 
3.44% 

Goldman 
Sachs BK 
USA New 
York CTF 
DEP DTD 

7.18% 

Discover Bk 
Greenwood 

DEL 
2.70% 

American Express Centurion Bk CTF DEP 
3.85% 

Firstbank P R Santuce 
16.86% 

State BK India Chicago ILL CTF DEP 
1.71% 

GE CAP Retail BK 
Draper Utah Instl  

6.50% 

First Sentry BK Inc Huntingtion West VA 
3.09% 

GE CAP Retail BK Draper Utah Instl  
5.48% JP Morgan Chase BK NA 

Columbus Ohio CTF 
6.70% 

Barclays BK Del Wilmington CTF Dep 
2.74% 

Goldman Sachs BK USA 
New York CTF UT CTF DEP 

5.48% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
3.45% 

State BK India Chicago ILL 
3.72% 

Sallie Mae BK Salt Lake City UT CTF DEP 
5.72% 

Wells Fargo BK N A San 
Francisco Calif 

6.73% 

Captial One BK USA NATL 
ASSN Glen Allen  

14.65% 

Breakdown of Multi-Bank WWTP - ***934 
September 2016  

81.10% 

7.66% 

10.68% 

0.28% 0.28% 

Total Portfolio of Investment  
(Including Money Market Cash) 

September 2016 

Money Market:          
$11,338,505.77  

Investments: Various  
$1,070,392.77  

Multi-Bank WWTP  $1,493,439.47  

L.A.I.F. ****375             $39,616.90  

L.A.I.F. ****005           $39,490.90  

Total: $13,981,445.81 

40.50% 

56.51% 

1.50% 

1.49% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Account 
September 2016 

Investments: Various  
$1,070,392.77  

Multi-Bank WWTP  $1,493,439.47  

L.A.I.F. ****375             
$39,616.90  

L.A.I.F. ****005           $39,490.90  

Total: $2,642,940.04 

****375 
 $39,616.90  

50.08% 

****005 
 $39,490.90  

49.92% 

Breakdown of L.A.I.F. Investments 
September 2016 

Total: $79,107.80 
 

Cash, Money, Funds, 
and Bank Deposits 

 $178,704.57 
6.76% 

Cetificate 
Deposit 

 $2,385,127.67  
90.25% 

L.A.I.F. 
 $79,107.80  

2.99% 

Total Portfolio of Investments by Type 
September 2016 

Total: $2,642,940.04 



 

 

   
Meeting Date: November 14, 2016  

Subject: Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission 

Appointment 

Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Deputy City Clerk/Management Analyst   

Enclosures: Chris Barth Parks, Recreation and Entertainment 

Commission Application 

 

Approval:  _________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the appointment of Chris Barth to the Hughson Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commission.  
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission is a vital asset to the City 
Council and the City of Hughson. This appointed body of five (5) members is 
responsible in providing recommendations to the City Council regarding policies for 
acquisition, development, maintenance, and improvement of park facilities. The 
Commission is also responsible for formulating and recommending appropriate fee 
schedules, policies, rules and regulations for park sites and other recreation 
facilities. 
 
The Hughson Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission has maintained a 
vacancy since May 2015, or approximately 18 months. Prior to 2015, the 
Commission has had frequent periods of vacancies. 
 
At the July 25, 2016 meeting, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2016-07, 
amending the residency requirements of the Hughson Parks and Recreation 
Commission and adding Arts and Entertainment Matters to the Powers and Duties 
of existing Hughson Parks and Recreation Commission. Since the expansion of 
the duties and amendment to the residency requirements to the Parks, Recreation 
and Entertainment Commission, City staff has advertised for the current vacancy 
via the local newspaper, social media, and the City of Hughson website under the 
amended qualifications.  
An application submitted on May 8, 2015 for the Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commission has been reviewed and accepted as qualified under 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.8 

SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



the new residency requirements adopted by Ordinance 2016-07.  No other 
application has been received to date. 
 
Staff reached out to the applicant and the applicant still remains interested in 
serving on the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission for the City of 
Hughson. Approving the appointment of Chris Barth will fill the current vacancy on 
the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission. 
  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Per the Hughson Municipal Code, Parks and Recreation Commissioners are not 
compensated. 







 

 

  
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2016 

Subject: Approval to Adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, Authorizing 

Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates to Examine Sales, 

Use and Transaction Tax Records and Authorizing the 

City Manager to Execute a Contract with Hinderliter, de 

Llamas & Associates for Sales and Use Tax Services 

Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director 

 

Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, authorizing Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates 

(HdL) to examine sales, use and transaction tax records of the State Board of 
Equalization. 
 

2. Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement for expanded services 
with HdL to provide sales, use and transaction tax and economic analysis 
services, audit/recovery and general consultant services. 

 
Background and Overview: 
 
Annually, the State Board of Equalization misallocates hundreds of thousands of 
dollars in sales and use tax dollars that are due to cities.  HdL is a firm that 
specializes in correcting these errors.  Founded in 1983, HdL was established to 
maximize local government revenues by providing a variety of audits, analytical 
services and software products.  The City of Hughson currently contracts with HdL 
for sales and use tax audit and information services as well as permitting tracking 
services.     
 
Discussion: 
 
On January 26, 2004, the City of Hughson contracted with HdL for sales and use 
tax audit services and optional reports.  The City currently receives limited services 
through HdL.  The attached resolution and agreement would authorize the City 
Manager to expand those services to include more comprehensive information, 
resulting in improved tax management and the identification of economic 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.9 

SECTION 3:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



2 
 

opportunities and trends. HdL’s services also include budget forecasting, a non-
confidential newsletter that can be distributed to economic development 
stakeholders and the community, and quarterly reports for staff to review the City’s 
sales, use and transaction tax data in detail and address potential sales tax 
leakage or misallocation of online or brick and mortar stores. Expansion of these 
services will better position the City as it explores economic opportunities in the 
context of the General Plan Update process and future development. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Under the current agreement with HdL, the City pays $1,800 annually for sales, 
use and transaction analysis services, and a 15% fee for all taxes recovered via 
audit.  The attached contract reflects HdL’s full mailing tax service, which includes 
a comprehensive set of quarterly reports, budget forecasting (twice annually), non-
confidential newsletter for general distribution, a quarterly summary analysis and 
access to a HdL consultant.  Under the new agreement, the annual cost for will be 
$3,000 plus the 15% fee for all taxes recovered via audit, or an additional $1,200 
per year.  This additional expense will be absorbed within the existing approved 
budget. 
  



3 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF HUGHSON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-36  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

AUTHORIZING EXAMINATION OF SALES, USE AND TRANSCATION TAX 

RECORDS 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 73-12, the City of Hughson entered into 

a contract with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to 

the administration and collection of local sales, use and transactions taxes; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hughson deems it desirable and 

necessary for authorized representatives of the City to examine confidential sales, 

use and transactions tax records of the State Board of Equalization pertaining to 

sales, use and transactions taxes collected by the board for the City pursuant to 

that contract; and  

WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code 

sets forth certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of Board of 

Equalization records, and establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful disclosure 

of information containing in, or derived from, the sales, use and transactions tax 

records of the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF HUGHSON, CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  
 

 Section 1. That the City Manager, or other officer or employee of the City 

designated in writing by the City Manager to the State Board of Equalization 

(hereafter referred to as Board), is hereby appointed to represent the City of 

Hughson with authority to examine sales, use and transactions tax records of the 

Board pertaining to sales, use and transactions taxes collected for the City by the 

Board pursuant to the contract between the City and the Board.  The information 

obtained by examination of Board records shall be used only for purposes related 

to the collection of City sales, use and transactions taxes by the Board pursuant to 

that contract. 

 Section 2.  That the City Manager, or other officer or employee of the City 

designated in writing by the City Manager to the Board, is hereby appointed to 

represent the City with authority to examine those sales, use and transactions tax 

records of the Board, for purposes related to the following governmental function of 

the city: 

(a) City Administration 



4 
 

 

(b) Revenue management and budgeting 

 

(c) Community and economic development 

 

(d) Business license tax administration 

The information obtained by examination of Board records shall be used only for 
those governmental functions of the City listed above. 

 
 Section 3.  That Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates is hereby designated 
and authorized to examine the sales, use and transactions tax records of the 
Board pertaining to sales, use and transactions taxes collected for the city by the 
Board.  The person or entity designated by this section meets all of the following 
conditions: 
 

(a) has an existing contract with the City to examine those sales, use and 
transactions tax records; 

 
(b) is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or 

derived from, those sales, use and transactions tax records only to the 
officer or employee authorized under Sections 1 or 2 of this resolution to 
examine the information. 
 

(c) is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services for a 
retailer during the term of that contract; and 

 
(d) is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information contained in, 

or derived from those sales, use and transactions tax records, after that 
contract has expired. 
 

 Section 4.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute any and 
all documents necessary to enter into a contract with Hinderliter, deLlamas & 
Associates to accomplish the purpose of this resolution 
 
The information obtained by examination of Board records shall be used only for 
purposes related to the collection of City sales, use and transactions taxes by the 
Board pursuant to the contract between the City and the Board and for purposes 
relating to the governmental functions of the city listed in Section 2 of this 
resolution. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 

regularly scheduled meeting on this 14th day of November 2016 by the following 

roll call vote: 

                  AYES:                        

                  NOES:                       



5 
 

                  ABSTENTIONS:        

                  ABSENT:           

                 

 _________________________ 

 MATT BEEKMAN, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

SUSANA DIAZ, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 





























 

 

  
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2016 
Subject: Update on the Proposed West Turlock Subbasin 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency Formation Pursuant 
to the California Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act (SGMA) 

Presented By:  Jaylen French, Community Development Director 
 
Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Discuss update to Proposed West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency being formed pursuant to the California Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA). 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Turlock Groundwater Basin Association (TGBA), of which the City of Hughson 
is a member agency, has been working together since the 1990’s to coordinate 
groundwater management activities in the Turlock groundwater basin.  In 1995, the 
agencies within the basin formally entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) for the purposes of studying and evaluating the condition of the basin and 
developing a groundwater management plan for the preservation, protection and 
enhancement of the basin, as well as to provide a mechanism for the members to 
collectively implement the Plan.   
 
In a region, and at a time, of increasing competition for the area’s finite water 
resources, it is important to understand and plan for the utilization of all the area’s 
water resources because groundwater and surface water are vitally important to 
maintain current and fulfill future agricultural, domestic, municipal and industrial 
needs, as well as to maintain the economic viability and prosperity of the area.   
 
In September 2014, Governor Brown signed the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA), which went into effect January 1, 2015.  SGMA has a 
number of tasks and deadlines associated with it, including the creation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) by June 30, 2017 and the adoption of a 
Groundwater Sustainable Plan (GSP) by December 31, 2020. 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
SECTION 4:  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



2 
 

 
In 2015, the TGBA decided to create a Post-SGMA Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) to set forth an approach to address SGMA compliance, 
including: Turlock Subbasin’s governance structure (single or multiple GSAs), 
preferred planning method of a GSP, as well as tools, resources, education, and 
outreach methods that need to be developed to inform stakeholders.  The Post-
SGMA MOU builds on the TGBA MOU and provides a better understanding of the 
requirements of SGMA.  The Hughson City Council approved the Post-SGMA 
MOU and authorized the City Manager to sign in September 2015. 
 
The consequence for not forming a GSA or developing and implementing a GSP 
by the deadlines is potential intervention by the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB) in local groundwater resources management.  This intervention 
could result in interim water management plans and charging local agencies a 
management fee. 
 
Ultimately, the agencies within the TGBA, which spans parts of Stanislaus and 
Merced counties, agreed to create two (2) separate GSAs through the formation of 
Joint Powers Agency (JPA), with the intent to prepare/adopt one (1) GSP.  The 
agencies within the West Turlock Subbasin—those generally located within Turlock 
Irrigation District’s boundaries—would make up one (1) GSA and the Eastside 
Water District’s, Ballico-Cortez’s and Merced Irrigation District’s boundaries 
comprise the other GSA.  Please see map below. 
 

 
 
SGMA established a new structure for managing California’s groundwater 
resources at a local level by local agencies or groups of agencies (GSAs).  A GSA 
is responsible for developing and implementing a GSP to meet the sustainability 
goal of the basin to ensure that it is operated within its sustainable yield, without 
causing undesirable results in terms of groundwater overdraft, land subsidence 
and water quality degradation. 
 



3 
 

GSPs should be based on the physical realities of geology, hydrology and land 
use.  Groundwater balances are the central data point in finding balance between 
groundwater pumping and recharge. 
 
GSPs should also be realistic regarding local, economic, political and legal 
conditions, including logistics in implementation and relationships to neighboring 
plans and finances. The plans should clarify the responsibilities and authorities of 
local agencies for implementation, and specify contingencies for when conditions 
deviate from plan assumptions or projections (including surface water deliveries 
and inflows from other basins). 
 
GSAs will very likely be required to make controversial decisions. Therefore, the 
development of sustainability objectives and analysis should be transparent to 
inform decision-makers. The technical information will likely include: 
 

 Definition of “sustainability” 
 Water balances for the basin under present and potential future 

conditions 
 Data collection and reporting to inform, monitor and evaluate analyses 

and plans 
 Overall assessment of groundwater basins 
 Management alternatives available to achieve local sustainability 

objectives 
 
The drafting of an effective GSP will be an immense technical and institutional 
challenge.  Thoughtful State regulations on the development and contents of these 
plans are essential to ensure GSAs have clear guidance and expectations. 
 
West Turlock Sub-basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (WTSB GSA) 
 
The WTSB GSA has created a formation committee which is working on the terms 
of a potential Joint Powers Agreement for the GSA. Per California law, a joint 
powers agency is a permitted entity, whereby two or more public authorities may 
jointly exercise any power common to any of them.  In regards to SGMA, the JPA 
has the authority to: enact/adopt rules and regulations, purchase land, retain staff, 
enforce rules and regulations, limit groundwater extractions, limit well construction, 
approve groundwater transfers within GSA area, and impose various fees and 
other powers and responsibilities provided to governmental agencies.   
 
The formation committee for the WTSB GSA currently consists of the following 
local agencies: Turlock Irrigation District, City of Turlock, City of Ceres, City of 
Waterford, City of Hughson, City of Modesto, Stanislaus County, Merced County, 
Delhi Community Water District, Hilmar Community Water District, Stevinson 
Water District, Denair Community Services District, Keyes Community Services 
District, Ballico-Cortez Water District, Monterey Park Community Services District, 
East Stanislaus Resource Conservation District, and Sand Creek Flood Control 
District. 
 



4 
 

In early-2016, the WTSB GSA members began drafting, reviewing, and discussing 
language for the eventual JPA.  The WTSB GSA has since held frequent meetings 
to discuss all issues associated with this matter.   
 
All comments were due on the JPA by November 9, 2016 and each agency is 
asked to adopt the JPA by December 15, 2016.  The JPA has been reviewed by 
City staff and legal counsel.  City legal counsel previously provided numerous 
comments which were accepted by the WTSB GSA.  The WTSB GSA group has 
modified the JPA language (as discussed below) related to concerns expressed by 
the City of Turlock and the City of Hughson. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Upon JPA formation, a budget will be prepared and adopted at one of the first 
agency meetings.  The primary GSA effort and large cost item will be the 
preparation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP).  It is estimated that this 
plan could cost between $1,000,000 and $2,000,000.  This effort will need to be 
funded by the members of the JPA. 
 
In regards to membership, the WTSB GSA formation group has created two tiers 
of members—Board members and Associate members.  Each type of member has 
certain privileges and obligations.  Board members have the ability to vote, but 
must fund all operating and project budget items.  Additionally, Board members 
must contribute $10,000 per year for five (5) years—the timeframe in which the 
GSP must be completed—to help initiate funds for this and any other efforts 
required.  As City staff understands, the $10,000 is not additional monies required 
for the privilege to vote on items; in essence, it is seed money, which will be used 
to help fund any effort deemed necessary by the GSA—primarily the GSP. 
 
Since the October 24, 2016 Council meeting, the WTSB GSA has revised the way 
in which incurred costs are shared amongst the members of the group.  This will 
have a small effect on the City of Hughson, but will have a large effect on the 
voting structure.   
 
The prior model used an agency’s jurisdictional boundary acreage plus their total 
water production (in acre feet of water) to determine a percentage share.  The 
resulting percentage is then averaged to create the agencies’ weighting.  A 
multiplier of 25% is applied to urban agencies due to the importance of providing 
water for potable use.  The City of Hughson’s weighting is approximately 1.10%.  
The Turlock Irrigation District’s weighting is over 69%, meaning, TID will fund 
nearly 70% of future costs incurred.  Please refer to DRAFT table below. 



5 
 

DRAFT AGENCY WEIGHTING METHODOLOGY 
   

While each voting member will have one equal vote, the weighted vote option 
which is intended as a veto power, was previously based on these percentages.  
After a weighted voting is invoked, action of the Board shall require the affirmative 
vote of: (1) a majority weighted vote of Board members voting on the item; AND (2) 
a majority of Board Member votes that are voting on the item.  This was intended 
to provide a level of assurance for the agency(ies) which fund a large portion of the 
GSA budget but which do not control the votes to match that share.  The effect of 
the call for a weighted vote is to nullify any Board action. 
  
As discussed above, the WTSB GSA group has modified the previously proposed 
JPA weighting structure based on Hughson City Council’s and Turlock staff’s 
expressed concerns regarding one (1) entity controlling absolute veto power.  
Hughson City staff held conversations with TID to discuss the concerns raised by 
the Council.  After much discussion, TID expressed concern that as the only 
agricultural water provider in the GSA they could be outvoted.  They maintained 
that they needed at a minimum veto power to protect their customers.  At the same 
time, City staff spoke with Turlock City staff regarding shared concerns. 
 
To address this issue, the City of Turlock will assume a greater share of the future 
costs to have an equal veto power with the Turlock Irrigation District (TID).  In 
round numbers, the City of Turlock and TID make up approximately 84% of the 
weighting percentage.  They have agreed to split all future costs equally, i.e. 42% 
each. This would provide each with veto power, not determined by weighting 
percentages.  This provides the opportunity for both large agencies to have veto 



6 
 

power and to negate a veto should it be deemed injurious to the other agency.  
This is to be the structure adopted in the JPA. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Over time there will be significant expenses associated with preparing a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP).  This is an unfunded State mandate, which 
will likely be paid from the Water Enterprise Fund (80).  Given that this fund can 
run in a negative position throughout the year, City staff will need to develop a 
funding strategy for this additional expense.   This strategy will be discussed when 
the associated JPA is brought forward for City Council consideration and action. 
 





































 

 

  
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2016 
Subject: Direct Staff to Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for 

the Enterprise Resource Planning Software and 
Implementation 

Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director 
 
Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Direct staff to release a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Enterprise Resource 
Planning Software and Implementation. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The objective of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to identify, select and 
implement a proven public sector Enterprise Resource Planning System to replace 
the City’s existing Multiple Operations Management (MOM) software provided by 
Corbin Willits.  The desire is to have the new system integrate financial 
management, payroll, budget, utility billing, business license, human resources and 
reporting into one system.   
 
The City of Hughson currently utilizes the MOM software system, including 
modules for general ledger, payroll, accounts payable, cash management, utility 
billing and business license, to support the ongoing operations of the City. 
Although adequate to meet many basic operational needs, MOM’s was 
implemented long ago and does not have the technology to enable complex 
analysis of data without extensive utilization of staff hours. In some instances, even 
with the extended number of staff hours, the technology is not adequate to perform 
the analysis required or to modify a report to meet specific needs. Although the 
system has been upgraded over time, the software is cumbersome for staff and 
makes it difficult for staff to provide transparent information.  The system’s 
outdated technology platform and limited functionality has prevented the City from 
implementing industry best practices in finance and human resource management.  
Over the past several years, the City has also experienced vendor support issues 
and declining customer support.   
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 
SECTION 6:  NEW BUSINESS 



A new Enterprise Resource Planning System would allow Hughson to catch up 
with industry best practices, including improved workflow and increased reporting 
and analysis capacity.  These efficiencies would be realized throughout the 
organization and falls in line with City Council’s priority for using technology to 
improve efficiency and transparency. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Based on City Council direction to undertake the RFP process for a new Enterprise 
Resource Planning Software, City staff has prepared for release of a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals from interested parties for software and 
implementation services. The draft RFP is attached.  Upon approval of the RFP, 
with assistance from the City Attorney, City staff will release and commence the 
process expected to take approximately 75 days to complete.  The following is the 
tentative schedule for reference. 
 

Release Request for Proposal     November 15, 2016 

RFP Questions Due to City     November 25, 2016 

City Responds to RFP Questions     December 2, 2016 

Proposals due to City of Hughson     December 15, 2016 

Product Demonstration/Select Vendor    January 9-13, 2017 

Hughson City Council Approval     January 23, 2017 

Completion of Agreement     January 31, 2017 

Implementation of New System     July 1, 2017 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget includes $150,000 from Fund 41 (Public Facility 
Development) for the Enterprise Resource Planning Software and Implementation.  
Staff recognizes that the total cost could exceed the budgeted amount and would 
need to be included in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Operating Budget.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
FOR 

 
ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING 
SOFTWARE AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 
 
 
 

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED  
NO LATER THAN 

3:00 PM, DECEMBER 15, 2016 
 
 
 
 

SEND PROPOSALS TO: 
Shannon Esenwein 

Finance Director 
City of Hughson 

7018 Pine Street | PO Box 9 
Hughson, CA 95326  



2 
 

 

PURPOSE 
 

The City of Hughson is soliciting proposals for a full range enterprise resource 
planning software applications that include software, conversion services, initial and 
ongoing training and technical support.  It is the City’s preference to enter into an 
agreement with a single vendor who can provide the complete range of required and 
desired modules, along with excellent customer service support.  The objective of 
this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to identify, select and implement a proven public 
sector enterprise resource planning system to replace the City’s existing Multiple 
Operations Management (MOM) software provided by Corbin Willits.  The City seeks 
a qualified vendor (Proposer) with the experience, expertise, and qualifications to 
provide a fully integrated, proven state-of-the-art solution (New System). 
 
The proposed New System should consist of the following integrated modules: 
 
 Financial Management Modules 

• General ledger 
• Budget preparation and management 
• Purchasing including requisitions and purchase orders 
• Accounts payable 
• Cash management and receipting 
• Accounts receivable 
• Fixed assets 
• Project/Grant management 

 
Payroll Modules 

• Payroll including labor and benefits distribution 
• CalPERS retirement reporting 

 
 Utility Billing Module 
 

Business License Module 
 
 Human Resources Modules 
• Personnel management 
• Benefits administration 
• Personnel action processing 
• Position budgeting 

 
Other  

• Reporting 
• Document imaging 
• System audit and security 
• Workflow 

 
In addition to the software modules identified above, the City is seeking a vendor to 
provide professional services that will ensure a successful implementation.  The 
professional services should include the following: 



3 
 

 
• Software installation and configuration 
• Implementation consulting 
• Data conversion 
• Documentation 
• Assistance designing and developing a new chart of accounts 
• Training 
• Project management 
• Software maintenance and support 

 
Proposers are encouraged to describe additional offerings that may be of interest to 
the City based on the proposer’s experience in working with similar size 
municipalities.  Proposers should clearly describe optional offerings and the pricing 
associated with the optional offerings. 
 
The City is prepared to make the resources available to make possible a July 1, 
2017 “go live” schedule of the core financials, payroll, utility billing and human 
resources.  The City is looking for Proposers to craft an approach that meets the 
City’s objective.  If Proposers are not able to meet this timeline, they are encouraged 
to propose an alternative timeline for the City to consider. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The City of Hughson is a small but prospering agricultural community situated in 
eastern Stanislaus County. Hughson is the smallest incorporated city in Stanislaus 
County, but has grown from a population of 3,259 in 1990 to around 7,000 today.  
Although Hughson is a growing community, it still maintains the unique small 
hometown feel that long time residents have always associated with the City.   
  
The City of Hughson was incorporated as a General Law City on December 9, 1972. 
The City is governed by a five-member City Council, and Council Members are 
elected at-large.   
  
The operating budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 is $10,048,440. The City operates 
with the support of 16 staff in the delivery of sewer, water, and general government 
services. Fire service is provided by the Hughson Fire Protection District and police 
service is provided through a contract and partnership with the Stanislaus County 
Sheriff’s Department.  
  
The City of Hughson is focused on building upon the successes of the past while 
learning from challenges previously faced. The City of Hughson is dedicated to 
enhancing the quality of life for residents by recognizing its agricultural heritage and 
maintaining the small town atmosphere. The City is also committed to providing a 
high level of public services, maintaining economic vitality and retaining the 
distinctiveness of the community through partnerships with other government 
agencies, non-profit organizations, businesses and local community groups.  
 
The Finance Department ensures the safekeeping, management and accounting of 
the City’s financial assets. The department provides City financial information to the 



4 
 

public, the City Council, the City Manager, and other City departments. The 
department audits revenue sources, processes cash receipts, payroll, accounts 
payable and accounts receivable, administers assessment districts and other debt, 
invests the City’s funds, prepares and monitors the City’s budget, and coordinates 
the City’s financial audits and preparation of the financial reports.  In addition the 
Finance Department provides personnel and risk management services to the City 
departments and the public.  Services include recruitment, selection, placement, 
employee benefits, workers compensation and employer/employee relations. 
  
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 

With this RFP, the City of Hughson has placed a high priority on replacing the 
existing MOM software with a proven, commercial-off-the-shelf system.  
Implementing the New System should meet the following high level objectives: 
 

• Provide a tightly integrated and comprehensive solution to manage the City’s 
business functions 

• Streamline business processes through automation, integration and 
workflows 

• Provide enhanced reporting capability to improve decision making 
• Promote implementation of best practice processes 
• Provide user friendly and intuitive user interface 
• Provide enhanced features and functionality 
• Provide online payment options for the public 
• Reduce/eliminate the reliance and need for “offline” spreadsheets to support 

financial activities 
 
In selecting a vendor, the City is looking for a vendor that can provide the following: 
 

• A solution that supports continual innovation to implement best business 
practices 

• Long-term vendor commitment to product improvements to keep up with best 
practices 

• Enhanced features and functionality to support operational efficiencies (i.e. 
workflow, self service, document imaging, banking integration, etc.) 

• Business analytics of finance, payroll, and human resource information 
• Access to system and approvals from mobile devices 
• Cost effective annual ongoing maintenance and support costs 

 
CURRENT FINANCIAL SYSTEM USE AND PROCESSES 
 
This section provides a high-level overview of how the City uses the Corbin Willits 
MOM system and information about manual processes performed outside of MOM.  
The City uses the following modules in the MOM system: 
 

• General Ledger 



5 
 

• Accounts Payable 
• Payroll 
• Cash Management 
• Budget (under the General Ledger module and manually entered from Excel) 
• Utility Billing 
• Business License 

 
The following bullets provide additional information regarding core financial functions 
performed by the City.  Automation of these processes in the New System is 
desired. 
 

• Staff has a heavy reliance on Microsoft Excel to support many finance and 
payroll functions.  In the future, the City’s desire is to minimize the use of 
offline spreadsheets and the reliance on independent data repositories. 

• The budget process is supported using Excel spreadsheets.  After the budget 
is adopted by the City Council, it is manually entered into MOM.  The City 
wishes to automate the budget process by using the New System to enter 
proposed budget data, generate proposed budget information and post the 
proposed budget to the general ledger once adopted by the Council.  In 
addition, to the extent feasible the City wishes to generate a budget 
document directly from the New System. 

• Purchase orders are generated utilizing manual processes including calling 
City Hall to obtain the purchase order number and then a manually entering 
the information into Excel to create the PO.  The generation of a purchase 
order does not simultaneously create an encumbrance for the expense.  It is 
the City’s desire to automate and integrate the purchase order process into 
the financial management system. 

• The Accounts Payable function involves creating a voucher using Excel and 
then entering the applicable information into the MOM system.  The current 
process includes double entry of information and has the possibility for a 
greater chance of error.   It is the City’s desire to automate and integrate the 
accounts payable function with the purchasing and general ledger modules in 
the New System. 

• The City manually flags transactions and enters adjustments for bank 
reconciliations directly into MOM to support the bank reconciliation. 

• Fixed Assets are maintained through an Excel spreadsheet and the 
corresponding depreciation is applied through a journal entry at the end of the 
fiscal year. 

• Financial reports are created by downloading information from MOM into 
Excel or by hand entering information from MOM into Excel. 

 
The City seeks a system that will automate as many processes as possible and help 
align the financial, payroll, purchasing, human resources, budget, business license 
and utility billing processes with best practices.  The City understands that existing 
processes and procedures may change to align with the best practice methods 
incorporated into the Proposer’s solution. 
 
  



6 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The City seeks a proven, fully integrated public sector enterprise resource planning 
system.  It is seeking to modify existing business processes to accommodate best 
practices.  More specifically, the New System should provide the following 
capabilities: 
 

• All transactions are processed in real-time and immediately available for 
inquiry and reporting 

• Fully integrated system where data is only entered once 
• Robust security capabilities 
• Workflow capabilities should be available across all appropriate modules 
• Reporting should be friendly, allowing staff to create and/or obtain reports 

with minimal training 
• Robust audit and transaction logging capabilities 
• Ability for read-only access 

 
The remainder of this section identifies selected key features, functions, and 
capabilities the City is seeking from a New System.  Proposers must respond to 
each section explaining how the proposed system meets the needs of the City, as 
well as identify any feature and functions that can further improve City processes. 
 
The City seeks a New System that provides the following general system 
characteristics in terms of its user interface: 
 

• An intuitive, consistent (within and across modules), well designed user 
interface 

• One-time/single point of data entry to eliminate re-keying of information 
• Robust search capabilities 
• All transactions are real-time and immediately available for inquiry and 

reporting 
• Comprehensive documentation and training materials 
• Electronic Workflow for all approval processes (i.e. purchase requisitions, 

invoice approval, vouchers, payroll, etc.) 
• Ability to drill-down and drill-across from a transaction to view the supporting 

source documents 
• Ability to easily export information directly to Excel, Adobe, Crystal Reports 

and other platforms 
• Provide user-defined tables, fields, screens, reports, hot keys, and business 

rules/workflows 
• Ability to modify setup/configuration (i.e. setup codes, report parameters, etc.) 

without the assistance of the Proposer 
• Support opening a new fiscal year prior to closing the previous fiscal year and 

support transactions and journal entries into the appropriate fiscal year 
 
  



7 
 

GENERAL LEDGER 
 
The New System should be capable of managing all of the City’s revenues and 
expenditures.  The New System should provide robust, easy to use reporting 
capabilities to support budget and expense reporting and financial analysis.  The 
General Ledger (GL) module should feature a rich set of functionality for journal 
management and bank reconciliation supporting the following: 
 

• Provide a fully integrated system with all other modules 
• Ability to import journals 
• Support for sub-ledgers 
• Numerous workflow and approval options, including secondary approval 
• Integration with bank reconciliation functions designed to support accounts 

payable check reconciliation, payroll and general account reconciliation 
activities 

• Ability to set up recurring journal entries 
• Provide journal entry templates for efficient data entry 
• Allow all users to enter GL transactions based on security roles 
• Provide all users access to the GL information based on security roles 
• Provide year-end financial statement preparation 
• Full drill-down capability 
• Provide simple, clean export of data to Excel, PDF and other platforms 
• The GL Account String / Chart of Accounts must have flexible segment 

options that support the following: 
 Support multiple funds 
 Support the City’s structure in terms of department, account, 

project, etc. 
 Support multiple cost centers 

• Allow clearing of outstanding checks individually, in groups or electronically 
by downloading from the financial institution 

• Prepare reconciliation statement 
• Easily handle the posting of bank generated transaction that have not been 

posted to the GL 
 
BUDGET 
 
The New System should include a robust budget module that allows for: 
 

• Integration with Microsoft Excel 
• Multi-level approval and rolling 
• Easy to use department interface for the development of their operating and 

capital budget 
• Projection modeling, including payroll projections 
• Options for populating budgets with historical data (i.e. last year’s actual) or 

developing zero-based budgets 
• Allow multiple budget versions to track the evolution of the budget, from 

initial, to proposed, to adopted budget 
• Track all amendments to the budget 



8 
 

• Pre-formatted outputs 
• Extensive use of budget vs. actual on-screen and hard-copy reporting that 

facilitates trend analysis 
• On-screen and reporting drill-down and drill-across 
• Outputs that are exportable to various file output formats including Excel 
• Multiyear reporting with at least 3 but preferably 5 years 

 
PURCHASING 
 
The City seeks to implement a fully integrated purchasing module as part of the New 
System.  The module should be capable of managing all the City’s product and 
service acquisition activities.  The City seeks to obtain a purchasing module that has 
the following capabilities: 
 

• Integrate with Accounts Payable, Fixed Assets and General Ledger 
• Track information for the entire life-cycle of the procurement (i.e. purchase 

order through payment) 
• Provide an open purchase order report by program number or by multiple 

program numbers 
• Provide search ability for both open and closed purchase orders by: 

 Vendor name, even if the payment is made to another name and 
address 

 Project 
 Program number or multiple program numbers 

• Support contractual retention (i.e. 10% holdback until the project is 
satisfactorily completed) 

• Perform budget checking during requisition and purchase order creation 
• Capture internal or external justification, notes, or comments on a purchase 

order with the ability of internal comments being visible only to City staff 
• Attach documentation to the purchase order 
• Allows authorized users to override limits placed by the system 
• Electronic Workflow support for the approval of purchase orders 
• Ability to electronically send purchase orders to vendors in PDF format 
• Restrict users to specific general ledger accounts 
• Prevent a purchase order from being issued to an inactive vendor 
• Issue blanket purchase orders 
• Support year-end activities such as the following: 

 Provide the ability to roll purchase orders to the new fiscal year 
 Allow purchase orders to be entered for the new fiscal year prior to 

the start of that fiscal year 
 Support for accruals 

• Allow change orders for purchase orders 
• Support certificate of insurance expirations 
• Robust audit tracking 
• Support for imaging and archiving of purchasing-related documents 

generated by the system 
• Provide real-time ability to see the original purchase order amount, 

encumbrance and balance 



9 
 

 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
The City seeks a robust accounts payable module that should have the ability to:  
 

• Attach relevant document images to accounts payable (A/P) items (i.e. 
invoice, purchase order, payment and receipt documents) 

• Integrate with fixed assets and GL 
• Allow for invoice processing without a purchase order 
• Verify budget availability during data entry 
• Select line items from the purchase order/invoice for payment 
• Generate more than one check for a vendor during the check process (i.e. 

one invoice per check although multiple invoices are being paid) 
• Generate multiple page checks 
• Post approved invoice to A/P and the GL upon approval 
• Automatically capture an image of the check and attach it to the vendor 

record 
• View the purchase order image, invoice image and payment image in vendor 

inquiry 
• Automatically calculate payment discounts 
• Automatically calculate taxes as appropriate for items being paid 
• Support California EDD reporting requirements for independent contractors 

and support 1099 reporting requirements 
• Include the email address and web site address in the vendor master record 
• Provide security for the vendor master record (to add new vendors and 

changes to the vendor master record) 
• Provide workflow support for check issuance and approvals 
• Allow staff to view vendor detailed payment history (i.e. to see all PO’s 

outstanding and payments made) 
 

CASH MANAGEMENT AND RECEIPTING 
 
The City utilizes cash management for the entry of miscellaneous cash receipts into 
the general ledger, utility payments, facility rental payments, business licenses fees, 
plan check fees, building permits, along with posting the cash to appropriate bank 
account(s). The module also provides for tracking of transfers between bank 
accounts and for bank reconciliation processes. The New System should:  
 

• Integrate with all aspects of the New System that affect cash accounts (i.e. 
GL, A/P, payroll, etc.) 

• Allocate investment earnings based on ending cash balances in each fund 
• Provide a daily treasurer’s report showing available cash balances 
• Automatically update GL accounts for all cash related transactions 
• Keep track of upcoming debt service payments to ensure prompt payment 

and help determine cash flow needs 
• Provide the ability to post transactions into the GL  
• Provide posting to one or more bank accounts  
• Support the transfer of cash between bank accounts  



10 
 

• Provide appropriate functionality for bank reconciliation needs  
• Provide templates to be used for different types of receipts 
• Update accounts receivable and any other related modules automatically 
• Integrate with Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates (HdL) building permit 

software 
• Provide for online payment options for the public to pay all bills 
• Prepare daily deposit 

 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
The City seeks to implement an accounts receivable (A/R) module that supports the 
preparation and tracking of miscellaneous invoices and monthly recurring invoices 
and statements.  The A/R module should: 
 

• Integrate with GL, cash management and project/grant management 
• Allow payments via ACH and online 
• Allow the ability to reverse payment receipts (i.e. account corrections or 

insufficient funds) 
• Provide templates for various types of A/R invoices (i.e. lease agreements, 

property rentals, etc.) 
• Post to the GL and A/R subject to workflow rules 
• Ability to allocate charges to various GL accounts 
• Update the A/R customer account outstanding balance with payments 

recorded in the cash management module automatically 
• Track unapplied credit balances 
• Track collection or write-off history 
• Provide for electronic mailing of PDF statements to customers 
• Generate recurring invoices or statements and allow description changes 
• Calculate late payments fees 
• Generate late payment notices on past-due accounts 
• Calculate scheduled rate increases (i.e. facility rents with scheduled 

increases) 
• Interface with HdL building permit software to track invoices generated and 

reduce duplicate entries 
• Print various accounts receivable reports (i.e. aging report by fund, by invoice 

type, accounts forwarded to collections, etc.) 
 
FIXED ASSETS 
 
The City seeks to implement a fully integrated fixed asset system that should: 
 

• Integrate with A/P and GL 
• Allow A/P staff to designate an invoice record as a fixed asset item and 

automatically add the record to the fixed asset ledger 
• Additional fixed asset records should be subject to workflow approvals 
• Allow users to add additional information to fixed asset record after purchase 
• Calculate deprecation which will post directly to GL subject to workflow 

approvals 



11 
 

• Provide all GASB 34 required fixed asset reports 
• Calculate beginning and ending balance, additions, retirements, and 

accumulated depreciation by comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) 
fixed asset categories such as land, machinery & equipment, buildings, 
improvements other than buildings, etc. 

• Allow system to track non-capitalized items for inventory control 
• Allow users to have view only access to fixed assets module 

 
PROJECT AND GRANT MANAGEMENT 
 
As part of the fully integrated system, the City wants a project and grant accounting 
module which can accommodate the following: 
 

• Track budget and expenditures over the life of the project or grant 
• GL entries (A/P and payroll) automatically flow into the project/grant 

accounting module 
• Provide grant accounting reports that cover multiple years 
• Provide users view-only access to the project/grant account module so that 

they can better track their projects and are not dependent on finance for 
information 

• Provide budget-vs.-actual reporting on a year-to-date or grant-to-date basis 
• Generate reports tailored to the requirements of the department or external 

granting agency 
• Ability to budget and report on project/grant within an existing program 
• Ability to track and generate report for capital project budget over a multi-year 

period 
• Ability to track operating budget for project revenue and expenditures over 

multiple years 
• Ability to track multiple revenue funding sources for each capital project and 

set priority of which funds are used first or for specific expenditure line items 
• Robust revenue and expenditure tracking abilities for current projects 

 
PAYROLL 
 
The City seeks to implement a full feature payroll system.  The payroll module 
should have the ability to: 

 
• Integrate payroll with human resources, GL, A/P and budget 
• Generate paychecks, direct deposit advices, and EFT files 
• Provide year to date totals by employee for wages, taxes, deductions, etc. 
• Calculate payroll in accordance with all federal and state requirements 

including the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 
• Calculate and report payroll using required CalPERS reporting elements 
• Support Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) requirements for 

alternate benefit offerings 
• Track all compensation elements necessary for the annual compensation 

report to the State Controller 



12 
 

• Provide detailed postings to the GL with the ability to drill back into the payroll 
module to see who was charged to a specific account and the hours charged 

• Support multiple concurrently open payrolls (i.e. vacation, sick or comp time 
cash outs, etc.) 

• Support check and direct deposit advice imaging, sharing and archiving 
• Withhold and remit all garnishments to the appropriate governmental 

agencies based on various withholding options 
• Support time entries for projects and grants 
• Allocate payroll costs and associated benefits to multiple accounts per 

employee based on time card entry allocation of hours or based on budget 
• Generate off-the-shelf and ad hoc reports that support data requirements 

associated with CalPERS, auditors, deferred compensation providers, along 
with ongoing reports including a comprehensive payroll register, sick and 
vacation accrual reports for management, overtime reports, tax reports, auto 
allowance reports, exception and payroll calculations, etc. 

• Provide month end reports for life insurance deductions, health insurance 
deductions, etc. for monthly payments to carriers 

• Export CalPERS files in the required format and provide the ability to support 
potential changes to current CalPERS requirements 

• Ability to flexibly define what earnings are subject to CalPERS, including 
different setups for different employee groups 

• Support the issuance of manual payroll checks 
• Generate all state and federal quarterly and annual payroll regulatory reports 
• Prepare and remit annual W-2s to the appropriate agencies and provide 

paper and electronic copies to the City 
• Automatically update state and federal tax rates, withholding, etc. 
• Define leave accruals by employee group or individual designation and ability 

to track multiple leave types 
• Alert employees/supervisor that leave accrual cap has been reached 
• Withhold and remit all taxes (via EFT/ACH) to the appropriate governmental 

agencies (i.e. withholding and remittance of social security tax, Medicare, 
etc.) 

• Automatically generates an audit report of all system changes with specific 
change(s) (before and after), showing user who made the change, and date 
and time of the change 

• Support ability to suspend leave accruals for employees while on authorized 
leave without pay and/or worker’s comp leave 

• Ability to mass populate changes for cost of living, salary, allowances, etc., by 
employee group 

• Ability to generate form 1094 and 1095 to IRS and employees per the 2015 
Affordable Care Act for employer provided health insurance 

• Ability to create mass change templates for various global changes 
• Automated check reconciliation via bank import file 

 
  



13 
 

UTILITY BILLING 
 
The City seeks to implement an integrated utility billing module as part of the New 
System.  The module should be capable of managing all aspects of the billing 
process.  The utility billing module should include the following features: 
 

• Provide for integration with A/P, A/R, cash management, etc. 
• Support an unlimited number of utility accounts per book/route 
• Provide all file maintenance in real-time 
• Support the ability to enter first and last names in separate fields 
• When setting up a new utility account the system should warn the operator if 

a customer with the same driver’s license number or social security number 
has had an account with the city and either owes a balance or has been 
written off as bad debt in the utility system 

• Provisions for user-defined fields with parameters defined by the user 
• Ability to turn off and turn on individual service resulting in automatic, user 

defined, prorating of services.  Ability to automatically turn services off and 
back on at specified dates or visa-versa 

• Provide for displaying and/or printing any customer account history (financial 
and consumption) upon request 

• The ability to have an unlimited amount of rates codes per service, per 
account 

• Provision for unlimited text or notes for a customer’s account with ability to 
identify as occupant related or address related notes.  Provide ability to 
assign alert flags to accounts with notes 

• End user reporting tools must be available to create queries and/or reports 
using data from any of the fields within the utility billing system 

• System must be able to provide an audit trail for changes to the account.  
Audit trail must include: user name, date, time stamp, old and new 
information 

• Provide the ability to lookup account information based on any number of 
criteria 

• Module should support unlimited transaction and consumption history 
• Provide internet billing and payment capabilities with the customer account 

updated in real time 
• Provide the ability to attach an alert code to a comment 
• Display balances by service (water, sewer and garbage) 
• Ability to vary rate structure to accommodate an unlimited number of rate 

tables for each service 
• Ability to support unlimited rate revisions and store prior rate tables in history 
• Ability to support rate revision in the middle of the billing cycle and have the 

system prorate automatically 
• Provide for one-time special charges 
• Ability to have an unlimited number of attachments, scanned documents or 

Word/Excel files 
• Print user defined messages on bills 
• Print bar codes on bills represent the customer’s utility account numbers.  

Ability to read bar codes with bar code scanners upon receipt of payment 



14 
 

• Ability to automatically add late penalties or interest charges to delinquent 
accounts according to a flexible rate structure determined by the user 

• Automatically generate a cut off list after printing a preview report, which can 
be reviewed for possible revisions 

• Ability to age accounts in 30, 60, 90 and 120-day increments 
• Automatic printing of disconnect notices and cut-off service orders Ability to 

produce delinquent bills for customers that have already received a final bill 
but continue to maintain an unpaid balance 

• Provides ability to post payments and adjustments to bad debt accounts 
• Provides ability to reinstate a bad debt account to the active data files without 

having to re-enter account information 
• Store date and time of reading when captured through automated meter 

reading system 
• Service order system provides automated updates to the utility system upon 

completion of applicable service orders (i.e. turn-ons, turn-offs, re-reads, 
meter change outs, transfers, etc.) 

• A history of all service orders related to a service address should be 
displayed in the inquiry window at the service address 

• Ability to automatically prorate bills for new accounts and final accounts 
based on user-defined formulas 

• Ability to automatically apply deposits to a final bill 
• Handle data transfer from Orion (Bader Meter) and provide upload and 

download of data to meter reading system 
• Ability to transfer deposit from one active billing account to another 
• Ability to convert data to Excel so that bills can be printed and mailed from 

ABS Presort 
• Ability to allow residents access to view their bill and history of consumption 

online 
 
BUSINESS LICENSE 
 
The City seeks to implement an integrated Business License module as part of the 
New System.  The module should be capable of the following: 
 

• Provide a business licensing system that automates license issuing, renewal 
and payment processing 

• Integrates with A/R, GL and Cash management 
• An integrated audit system that tracks entries by user id with name, date and 

time stamp 
• Ability for online payments  
• Ability to print laser printed licenses on blank stock 
• Provide the ability to complete a batch renewal for current license 
• Provide identification for non-renewal license types and the ability to eliminate 

these in batch renewal process 
• Report writer for ad hoc reporting 
• Drill down capabilities 
• Real time system processing 
• Provide the ability to attach a file to a record 



15 
 

• Ability to add special comments with selected accounts 
• Handle an unlimited number of fees and rates 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The City seeks to implement an integrated human resources (HR) module as part 
of the New System.  The module should be capable of managing all of the City’s 
employees, certification/license requirements, and retirement and benefit 
packages. The City will consider an integrated robust system that provides for 
online application and reports to receive applicant data and to track and process 
applicants during the recruitment and selection process up to the point of hiring 
depending on the price and capability of the applicant tracking system. 
 
The human resources module should include the following features: 
 

• Incorporate Position Control 
• Make extensive use of table-based salary maintenance schedules and other 

field components 
• Provide business analytics and simple ad hoc reporting 
• Track certifications including expiration date 
• Provide the ability to specify required certification by job title 
• Support automatic notifications of upcoming salary step increases 
• Provide employee event tracking to manage performance evaluations, 

training, certifications, and salary increases 
• Provide tracking and reporting for employees on medical leave and/or 

workers’ comp leave 
• Provide workflow tracking and reporting functionalities such as performance 

evaluation, Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), etc., wherein emails are sent 
to the HR administrator, employees and their supervisors 

• Provide an online portal for employee access to personnel forms, 
memorandum of understanding (MOU), policies and procedures, Injury Illness 
and Prevention Program, personnel manual, salary schedules, etc. 

• Provide an audit report of all system changes with specific change(s) (before 
and after), user who made the change, and date and time of change 

• Implement strict security measures concerning access to the system 
• Implement an electronic employee performance review process 
• Organization charting capability 
• Provide benefits administration capabilities 
• Ability to print reports on user defined fields 

 
REPORTING 
  
The City seeks to obtain a robust reporting capability to support the finance, utility 
billing and payroll functions. The New System should provide the following reporting 
features: 
 

• The ability to export data to Excel 
• A user-friendly report writer with drill-down / drill across capability 



16 
 

• Flexibility including the ability to schedule reports to run and distribute 
automatically, generate reports to HTML and PDF formats, and email reports 

• On screen dashboard analytics that are easy to create and customize by the 
user 

• Preparation of standard CAFR reports 
 
DOCUMENT IMAGING  
 
The City desires to streamline processing in order to capture, store, index, search 
and retrieve electronic images associated with financial, human resource, utility 
billing and payroll transactions as they are being handled by the system. The 
document management capabilities integrated with the New System should provide 
the following basic capabilities:  
 

• Provide imaging of documents created by the system including purchase 
orders, payroll checks, accounts payable, W2's, 1099's, utility bills, business 
license, etc. The images should be available by individual record. For 
example, an individual's paycheck and not the entire check run for the pay 
period  

• Allow manually scanned images to attach to appropriate transaction records - 
the module should prompt for scanned attachments  

• Conform to records management requirements including retention schedules  
• Provide drill-down ability for the user to view related documents associated 

with financial, payroll, utility billing and personnel transactions. For example, 
vendor inquiry should provide the ability to view images of accounts payable 
checks, associated purchase orders, the requisition and associated manually 
scanned documents including bids and packing lists  

• Provide system coordination to allow batch processing of images. For 
example, allow accounts payable invoices received to be scanned in a batch 
and then associated with each purchase order  

• Provide the ability to export images to allow uploading to the City’s existing 
document management system  

 
SYSTEM AUDIT AND SECURITY 
  
The City seeks to implement a New System with robust security and transaction 
audit/logging capabilities. The system audit capabilities should include the ability to 
track transaction processes and updates to the database. The New System should 
create audit trails for transactions processed through the system allowing authorized 
staff to drill down on transactions to view supporting detail. Audit logging should 
allow authorized staff to easily determine the source of each transaction to include 
identifying user ID and date/time for all table changes.  
 
WORKFLOW  
 
The City seeks to implement a New System with workflow capabilities to help 
automate common financial, human resource, utility billing and payroll transactions. 
The system workflow capabilities should include the ability to notify a user 



17 
 

automatically when action is needed. The system should include automated 
approvals and notifications supporting a paperless environment. The New System 
should have the ability to:  
 

• Track transactions submitted for approval and review with the date/time 
stamp  

• Automate approval notification both at the system level and via the City’s 
email system  

• Implement best practice workflow templates for all core financial and payroll 
transactions (i.e. payables processing, purchase order approval, GL 
transaction approval, payroll processing, journal entries, etc.)  

• Integrate with the City’s email system to assist in the notification and approval 
steps  

• Create custom workflows based on the City business rules 
 
TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The City will acquire new infrastructure as deemed necessary in order to make 
optimal use of the New System.  The city wants to make use of the best practices in 
technology as long as it is financially feasible.  Proposers should state clearly not 
only the minimum information technology requirements for their software, but more 
importantly the optimal requirements for best use of their software. 
 
KEY SELECTION FACTORS 
 
An Evaluation Committee shall review all proposals to determine which Proposers 
have qualified for consideration. The evaluation will include at least an initial review 
and a detailed review. The initial review will evaluate all submissions for 
conformance to stated specifications to eliminate all responses that deviate 
substantially from the basic intent and/or fail to satisfy the mandatory requirements. 
Only those proposals that meet or exceed the intent of the mandatory requirements 
will be further evaluated.  
 
Submitted proposals will be evaluated on the following criteria:  
 

• Quality, clarity, and responsiveness of proposal  
• Ability to meet the needs of the City  
• Well thought out timeline and roadmap for desired “go live” dates  
• Proven technical ability to design, install and support the proposed system 
• Demonstrated ability to work in a cooperative and collaborative manner with 

clients  
• Anticipated value and price  
• Perceived risk or lack thereof  
• Company financial stability  
• Number of similar size clients in terms of users, population and city services 
• Ease in maintaining the system and frequency of fixes 
• Ease and cost of upgrading versions 
• References for each application proposed  



18 
 

• Results of interviews, demonstrations, and site visits  
• Ability to prepare and execute a contract in a timely manner  
• Commitment to continually evolving the system to remain current with 

evolving best practices  
 
The proposal evaluation will be heavily weighted on the Proposer’s success in the 
Proof of Capabilities demonstration and site visits.  The City reserves the right, at its 
sole discretion, to request clarifications of proposals or to conduct discussions for the 
purpose of clarification with any or all Proposers. The purpose of any such 
discussions shall be to ensure a full understanding of the proposal. Discussions shall 
be limited to specific sections of the proposal identified by the City and, if held, shall 
be held after initial evaluation of Proposals is complete. If clarifications are made as 
a result of such discussions, the Proposer shall put such clarifications in writing. 
 
  



19 
 

CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS 
 
 
PROPOSAL DELIVERY LOCATION 
 

Proposals shall be delivered/mailed to the attention of Shannon Esenwein, Finance 
Director, City of Hughson, 7018 Pine Street | PO Box 9, Hughson, California 95326 
prior to 3:00 PM on December 15, 2016.  Proposals received after that time will be 
returned unopened to the respective Proposer and will not be considered for 
evaluation.  No faxed or emailed proposals will be accepted. 
 
 
REQUIRED CONTENT OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

The proposal should be concise, well organized and demonstrate the proposer’s 
qualifications and experience applicable to the scope of services.  The proposal shall 
be limited to 75 one-sided pages (8.5”x11”), inclusive of cover letter, resumes, and 
graphics. 
 
The following describes the information that should be submitted by each Proposer:  
 

1. Cover Letter 
2. Table of Contents 
3. Project Understanding and Vendor Qualifications 
4. Proposed Application Software & Computing Environment 
5. Database Software 
6. Optional Software 
7. System Security 
8. Responses to General/Functional Requirements 
9. Implementation Support and Training 
10. Maintenance Program 
11. Client References 
12. Contract Terms and Conditions 
13. Cost Proposal and Schedule 
14. Software Licensing and Maintenance Agreement 

 
 
Cover Letter: 
The submittal should include a letter describing the Proposer’s interest in providing 
the requested services.  The person authorized by the Proposer to negotiate a 
contract with the City shall sign the cover letter.  Include the name, phone number, 
and e-mail address of the contact person for the proposal process. 
 
Table of Contents: 
All pages are to be numbered and figures, tables, charts, etc. must be assigned 
index numbers and identified in the Table of Contents. 
 
Project Understanding and Vendor Qualifications: 
The submittal should include a description of the Proposer’s understanding of the 
project and a narrative, including complete information about the proposer and its 



20 
 

ability to perform the work described in the Scope of Services. This section shall 
address the following topics: 
 
1. Brief history of the proposer, including key personnel 
2. Names and resumes of designated project manager and key personnel that 

will be assigned to this contract 
3. Organization chart of project personnel 
4. Description of experience (Proposer’s team and project personnel) on similar 

municipal enterprise resource management software and implementation 
projects  

5. Statement of project understanding 
6. Indicate the primary contact (and management hierarchy) that will be 

available for all aspects of the work 
 

Proposed Application Software & Computing Environment 
The vendor must present, in detail, features and capabilities of the proposed 
application software.  
 
In addition, the following information should be included:  

• Hardware Environment - Describe the hardware environment required to 
utilize the proposed software. In the event there is more than one suitable 
hardware platform, list all options indicating the relative strengths and 
weaknesses (if any) of each.  

• Operating System - Identify the operating system required by the proposed 
applications software and database management system in the hardware 
environment recommended above. In the event there is more than one 
suitable operating system, list all options indicating the relative strengths and 
weaknesses (if any) of each.  

 
List the operating system software support products required to support the 
recommended computing environment. List any additional Proposer software 
products required to support your proposed application software. 
 
Database Software 
Provide a description of the database management system utilized by the proposed 
software application(s). List any features utilized in constructing the proposed 
system and any additional required or optional end-user productivity tools.  
 
Optional Software 
The vendor should explicitly state the name of any third-party products that are part 
of the proposed solution to the City of Hughson list of requirements. For each third-
party product, there should be a statement about whether the Proposer’s contract 
would encompass the third-party product and/or whether the City of Hughson would 
have to contract on its own for the product.  
 
Include a description of any products, features or other value added components 
available for use with the proposed software application(s) that have not been 
specifically requested in this RFP. Consideration of these products, features, or 



21 
 

other value added components will be given where these may be of value to the City 
of Hughson. 
 
System Security 
System security should be designed to provide adequate user access and breach 
logs and other preventative controls to prevent unauthorized access to the software 
proposed. This can be through individual user access, group access or integrated 
with the Windows environment. The system should report that a breach has 
occurred or attempted and indicate the data compromised or at risk.  
 
Responses to General/Functional Requirements 
The vendor must provide responses to each of the General Requirements which are 
listed on pages 6-16 of the RFP.  
 
Implementation Support and Training 
The Proposer should identify the proposed implementation approach clearly 
identifying each phase, the timeline proposed, roles and responsibilities to be 
performed by the Proposer, and those to be performed by the City.  
 

• Describe your implementation and project management methodology and 
approach to ensure a successful implementation.  

• Provide a detailed work plan that identifies major activities, tasks, 
deliverables, and resources. The work plan should assume a “go live” date of 
July 1, 2017 for all core financials (GL, Budget, A/R, A/P, etc.), payroll, utility 
billing, business license and HR functions. If Proposer is recommending 
additional phases, please include those in the work plan so that the City can 
clearly understand what the additional phases would include and the timeline 
for their completion. If Proposer cannot meet the July 1, 2017 “go live” date or 
recommends a different timeframe, please explain the rationale.  

• Describe the roles and responsibilities of the City staff during implementation 
and provide an estimated level of effort.  

• The City desires to convert five (5) years of GL historical data in addition to 
the current fiscal year. Any GL data to be converted would be done after the 
system goes live and the audit is complete for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017.  

• Describe your conversion methodology that would be used to implement the 
New System. In addition, provide your recommendations for data conversion.  

• Describe your training methodology and how you ensure users are prepared 
to use the New System. 

 
Maintenance Program 
Specify the nature of any post-implementation support provided by the Proposer 
including:  

• Telephone support: toll-free support hotline, hours of operation, etc.  
• Availability of future upgrades and product enhancements  
• Availability of user groups  
• Problem reporting and resolution procedures  



22 
 

• Other support (e.g., onsite; remote dial-in; website access to patches, fixes, 
and knowledge base)  

• Trainings services offered after the software has gone live (refresher, new 
hire and upgrade training), including training prices/rates, if applicable  

 
Client References 
The Proposer must provide at least five reference with at least three of the 
references for system that have been implemented in the last five years. The City 
prefers references from California municipal agencies of similar size and complexity 
to the City. 
 
For each reference, Proposer must provide the following information: 

1. Agency name and contact information (i.e. name, title, address, phone and 
email) 

2. Brief project description, including identifying the software version and 
modules implemented 

3. Number of agency employees 
4. Agency general fund budget 
5. Implementation date 
6. Implementation timeline and cost 

 
In addition to the above reference list, the City desires each Proposer to identify 
which of their clients are fully utilizing the system and demonstrate how those clients 
have implemented their software to its fullest capability and creatively structured 
processes around the system to make their business processing and customer 
service highly effective and efficient.  For each proposed module, the City expects 
the Proposer to list their top client that uses that module to its fullest extent in a table 
that shows the following information: 
 

• Module name 
• Agency name and contact information 
• Brief description of why that agency stands out in its use of the module 

 
Contract Terms and Conditions 
Provide a copy of the Proposer’s standard Terms and Conditions contract.  
 
Cost Proposal and Project Schedule: 
The cost proposal and project schedule section identifies the total cost to the City of 
Hughson for the entire enterprise resource management software and 
implementation, including all tasks identified in the RFP and other tasks as proposed 
in the professional judgment of the Proposer. The proposal must divide the project 
into separate functional work tasks, corresponding with the proposed Project 
Schedule, and provide the associated fees for the work to be done. This should 
include an estimate of the work hours of the various personnel involved.   
 
ALL cost incurred and billed to the City of Hughson, including professional services, 
software license fees, modification costs, implementation, training, support services 



23 
 

costs, annual software maintenance costs for 5 years and other anticipated costs  shall 
be included within the Proposer’s cost proposal. 
 
Software Licensing and Maintenance Agreement 
In this section, the Proposer must provide any software licensing and maintenance 
agreements that will be required to implement the Proposer’s solution. 
 

Submittal Instructions 
 
Proposer’s are required to submit one (1) original and three (3) additional copies of 
the proposal, including all required attachments by the date, time and location 
specified in this request for proposals. 
  



24 
 

EVALUATION PROCESS 
 

The objective of the evaluation process is to perform a thorough and fair assessment 
of each vendor’s proposal and facilitate the selection of a vendor that best meets the 
City’s needs.   
 
The review committee comprised of city staff, other local agency staff and/or 
members of the Budget and Finance Subcommittee will review and evaluate each 
proposal which is received by the stated submittal deadline.  The proposals will be 
evaluated based on the key selection factors, including the Proposer’s qualifications; 
related experience, system functionality, implementation capabilities, ability to 
complete the work by the identified deadline and cost competitiveness.  The 
Proposer should show a strong understanding of the City of Hughson’s needs.  
Depending on the number and quality of proposals received, the City will identify a 
list of the vendors which will progress to the proof of capabilities portion of the 
evaluation process.  However, please note, the City has the option to select the 
identified vendor based solely on the proposals received.   Oral Interviews and 
product demonstrations will be held if determined necessary. 
 
The Proposer determined best suited to meet the needs of the City will be 
recommended to the City Council for final selection. The City Council has the sole 
and absolute discretion regarding final selection.  Upon final selection, the vendor 
and City will formalize the scope of services and associated contract fee.  
 
TENTATIVE SCHEDULE FOR VENDOR/SOFTWARE SELECTION: 
 

Release Request for Proposal  November 15, 2016 
RFP Questions Due to City  November 25, 2016 
City Responds to RFP Questions December 2, 2016 
Proposals due to City  December 15, 2016 
Product Demonstration/Select Vendor  January 9-13, 2016 
City Council Approves Contract  January 23, 2017 
Completion of Agreement/Notice to Proceed    January 31, 2017 

 
PROPOSAL INQUIRIES: 
 

Questions regarding this proposal shall be referred to: 
 
 Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director 
 City of Hughson 
 7018 Pine Street | PO Box 9 
 Hughson, California 95326 
 
 (209) 883-4054 
 E-mail: sesenwein@hughson.org 
 

 

 
  



25 
 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
Cost of Preparation of Proposal and Contract 
 

The City of Hughson shall not pay costs incurred in the proposal preparation, 
printing, demonstration process, or contract negotiation. All such costs shall be 
borne by the proposer. 
 
Rights to Pertinent Materials 
 

All responses, inquiries, and correspondence relating to the Request For Proposal 
and all reports, charts, sample documents, displays, exhibits, and other 
documentation produced by the proposer are submitted as part of the proposal shall 
become the property of the City of Hughson after the proposal submission deadline. 
 
Award 
 

The City of Hughson reserves the right to award this contract to the proposer whose 
total aggregate proposal is most responsive to the needs of the City. An evaluation 
of the proposer’s ability, quality, and performance on previous or current contracts 
will be used in addition to the rate schedule as a basis of award for any resultant 
contract. 
 

 
  



26 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
 
 
Name of Proposer: _____________________________________________  
 
Address: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: ___________________________________________________  
 
E-mail Address: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
Type or Print Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2016 

Subject: Consideration to Accept the Resignation of Planning 

Commissioner John Luis and Provide Direction to Staff 

on Filling the Vacant Planning Commission Position   

Presented By:  Susana Diaz, Management Analyst/Deputy City Clerk  

 

Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
1. Accept the resignation of Planning Commissioner John Luis. 

 
2. Provide direction to City staff on filling Planning Commission vacancy or 

appoint Michael Ann Mitchell or Brian G. Evans to the Hughson Planning 
Commission.  

 
Background and Overview: 
 
On November 8, 2016, City staff received notification from John Luis of his 
resignation effective immediately from the Hughson Planning Commission due to 
his provisional appointment to the Hughson Unified School District Board of 
Trustees.  
 
City staff would like to take this opportunity to personally thank Mr. Luis for his 
service to the City and to the residents of Hughson. 
 
In September 2016, City staff received Planning Commission applications from Mr. 
Evans, Ms. Mitchell, and Mr. Luis for the then vacant seat. On September 12, 
2016, the City Council appointed John Luis to the Planning Commission.  Since 
this appointment, Mr. Luis has also been appointed to the Hughson Unified School 
District Board of Trustees, thus the reason for his resignation. 
 
After receiving notice of the resignation, City staff reached out to the prior 
applicants to determine if they still had interest in serving on the Planning 
Commission for the City of Hughson.  Both have expressed continued interest.  
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.2 

SECTION 6: NEW BUSINESS 



The City Council has the option to direct staff to post the vacancy and open up an 
application process as traditionally done or approve the appointment of Brian G. 
Evans or Michael Ann Mitchell to fill the current vacancy on the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Per the Hughson Municipal Code, Hughson Planning Commissioners are 
compensated $50 per meeting attended and reimbursement of necessary travel 
and other expenses incurred by the performance of their official duties.  The City’s 
annual budget includes funding for this commitment. 

 



From: Raul Mendez
To: Susana Diaz
Subject: Fwd: Hughson Planning Commission
Date: Tuesday, November 08, 2016 4:17:23 PM

FYI.

Raul

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: John <jlutu17@gmail.com>
Date: November 8, 2016 at 4:15:59 PM PST
To: <jfrench@hughson.org>, <rmendez@hughson.org>
Subject: Hughson Planning Commission

Gentleman, 
Please accept this email as my resignation from the Planning Commission,
effective immediately. A formalized hard copy of my resignation will be
delivered to your office no later than Thursday, November 10, 2016. 

I appreciate the support and professionalism I have experienced in my short
tenure. 

Sincerely, 

John Luis

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:/O=CITY OF HUGHSON/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=RAUL MENDEZ594
mailto:SDiaz@hughson.org
mailto:jlutu17@gmail.com
mailto:jfrench@hughson.org
mailto:rmendez@hughson.org















	1.1 Agenda 11-14-16
	3.1 Minutes and Coversheet 10-24-16
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:
	2.1: Stanislaus County Annual Crop Report Presentation.
	Milton O’Haire, Stanislaus County, presented to the City Council the Stanislaus County Annual Crop Report.
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	6. NEW BUSINESS:
	7. CORRESPONDENCE:  NONE.
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers

	3.2 Minutes and Coversheet 11-1-16 Special Meeting 11-14-16
	3.3 Warrant Register Cover Sheet 11-14-16
	3.3a Warrants Register 11-14-16
	3.4 Staff Report Treasurer's Report August 2016 11-14-16
	3.4a Treasurer's Report August 2016 11-14-16
	3.5 Staff Report-Portfolio Investments-August 2016 11-14-16
	3.5a Investment Portfolio Report-August 2016 11-14-16
	3.6 Staff Report Treasurer's Report September 2016 11-14-16
	3.6a Treasurer's Report September 2016 11-14-16
	3.7 Staff Report-Portfolio Investments-September 2016 11-14-16
	3.7a Investment Portfolio Report-September 2016 11-14-16
	3.8 ParksRecAppt SR 11-14-16
	3.8a CBarth PR&EC Application 11-14-16
	3.9 HdL Agreement SR_Reso 11-14-16
	3.9a HdL Contract 11-14-16
	4.1 SGMA Summary Update2_SR 11-14-16
	4.1a Draft JPA_11.9.16 11-14-16
	Untitled_11092016_033635
	Untitled_11092016_033745
	Untitled_11092016_034836

	6.1 FMS RFP Release Approval 11-14-16
	The objective of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to identify, select and implement a proven public sector Enterprise Resource Planning System to replace the City’s existing Multiple Operations Management (MOM) software provided by Corbin Willits.  ...

	6.1a City of Hughson RFP FMS 11-14-16
	The City of Hughson is soliciting proposals for a full range enterprise resource planning software applications that include software, conversion services, initial and ongoing training and technical support.  It is the City’s preference to enter into ...
	The City of Hughson is a small but prospering agricultural community situated in eastern Stanislaus County. Hughson is the smallest incorporated city in Stanislaus County, but has grown from a population of 3,259 in 1990 to around 7,000 today.  Althou...
	PROJECT INFORMATION
	Name of Proposer: _____________________________________________
	Address: _____________________________________________________
	Telephone: ___________________________________________________

	6.2 Resignation of Planning Commission John Luis 11-14-16
	6.2a Hughson Planning Commission John Luis Resignation 11-14-16
	6.2b Planning Commission Applications 11-14-16

